Public Document Pack

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL

14 September 2021

Worthing Planning Committee

Date: 22 September 2021
Time: 6.30 pm
Venue: Council Chamber, Worthing Town Hall

Committee Membership: Councillors Noel Atkins (Chairman), Karen Harman (Vice-
Chairman), Dan Coxhill, Edward Crouch, Jim Deen, Martin McCabe, Helen Silman and
Steve Wills

NOTE:

Anyone wishing to speak at this meeting on a planning application before the Committee
should register by telephone (01903 221006) or e-mail democratic.services@adur-
worthing.gov.uk before noon on Tuesday XXXXXX 2020.

Agenda
Part A

1. Substitute Members
Any substitute members should declare their substitution.

2. Declarations of Interest
Members and Officers must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in
relation to any business on the agenda. Declarations should also be made at any

stage such as interest becomes apparent during the meeting.

If in doubt contact the Legal or Democratic Services representative for this
meeting.

Members and Officers may seek advice upon any relevant interest from the
Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting.


mailto:heather.kingston@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:heather.kingston@adur-worthing.gov.uk

3. Public Question Time

So as to provide the best opportunity for the Committee to provide the public with
the fullest answer, questions from the public should be submitted by midday on
Monday 20 September 2021.

Where relevant notice of a question has not been given, the person presiding
may either choose to give a response at the meeting or respond by undertaking
to provide a written response within three working days.

Questions should be submitted to Democratic Services —
democratic.services@adur-worthing.gov.uk

(Note: Public Question Time will last for a maximum of 30 minutes)

4, Confirmation of Minutes

To approve the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings of the Committee
held on Wednesday, 25 August 2021, which have been emailed to Members.

5. Items Raised Under Urgency Provisions
To consider any items the Chair of the meeting considers urgent.
6. Planning Applications (Pages 1 - 130)
To consider the reports by the Director for the Economy, attached as Item 6.
7. Planning Appeals
None.
Part B - Not for publication - Exempt Information Reports

None.

Recording of this meeting

The Council will be voice recording the meeting, including public question time. The
recording will be available on the Council’'s website as soon as practicable after the
meeting. The Council will not be recording any discussions in Part B of the agenda
(where the press and public have been excluded).

For Democratic Services enquiries relating | For Legal Services enquiries relating to

to this meeting please contact: this meeting please contact:
Heather Kingston Sally Drury-Smith
Democratic Services Officer Lawyer

01903 221006 01903 221086



mailto:democratic.services@adur-worthing.gov.uk

heather.kingston@adur-worthing.gov.uk sally.drury-smith@adur-worthing.gov.uk

Duration of the Meeting: Four hours after the commencement of the meeting the
Chairperson will adjourn the meeting to consider if it wishes to continue. A vote will be
taken and a simple majority in favour will be necessary for the meeting to continue.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee
22 September 2020

Agenda Item 6

WORTHING BOROUGH Ward: ALL

COUNCIL Key Decision: ¥es / No

Report by the Director for Economy

Planning Applications

1
Application Number: AWDM/1240/21 Recommendation — Approval, subject to
Amended Plans

Site: Buckingham Road, Multi Storey Car Park, Buckingham Road, Worthing

Proposal: Installation of a new facade system and clearer signage to the car park
building. Architectural cladding to significantly improve the car park's
edge protection and fall prevention barrier. Enhancements to the
existing street level public realm beneath the car park overhang, by
refreshing the decoration, lighting and flooring

2

Application Number: AWDM/1270/20 Recommendation - If the Committee
could still determine the application it
would have agreed to refuse.

Site: Guest House, 6 Windsor Road
Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for existing use (use of 6 Windsor Road

for the provision of housing for those in need of emergency
accommodation (temporary)).

3
Application Number: AWDM/0655/21 Recommendation — APPROVE
Site: Unit 1A, Ivy Arch Road, Worthing

Proposal: Construction of storage building (Use Class B8), including vehicle
parking and associated works



4
Application Number: AWDM/0550/21 Recommendation — APPROVE

Site: Garage Site South Of Heene C Of E Primary School, Norfolk Street,
Worthing

Proposal: Demolition of existing storage buildings. Construction of replacement
building comprising 4no. one-bedroom flats and 2no. two-bedroom
flats, bin and bike storage and associated landscaping.



1

Application Number:

AWDM/1240/21 Recommendation - Approval,

subject to Amended Plans

Site:

Buckingham Road, Multi Storey Car Park,
Buckingham Road, Worthing

Proposal:

Installation of a new facade system and clearer
signage to the car park building. Architectural
cladding to significantly improve the car park's edge
protection and fall prevention barrier. Enhancements
to the existing street level public realm beneath the
car park overhang, by refreshing the decoration,
lighting and flooring

Applicant:

Worthing Borough Ward: Central

Councill

Case Officer:

Stephen Cantwell

— _;
7a ':L:Lf'ii_}

—
Lﬂll
[-d l

-

I
|

— _ _E. _\L‘T‘ﬂSub st

Not to Scale

Reproduced from OS Mapping with the permission of HMSO © Crown Copyright Licence number LA100024321




Site and Surroundings

This application is made by Worthing Borough Council. It relates to the five tier
multi-storey Buckingham Road car park, which lies just inside the edge of the town
centre area as defined in the 2011 Core Strategy.

It is located at the southern end of Buckingham Road, between Chandos Road to
the east and Graham Road to the west. These streets, including Buckingham Road
are largely residential streets of two storey Victo-Edwardian houses but with some
commercial uses and service access to the rear of Montague Street and Cheals
Mews immediately to the north. To the south, south east and south west are
Montague Street shops and a restaurant mostly with flats above, this includes
shops and flats immediately to the east side of Buckingham Road. A service road
also lies between the west of the car park and rear gardens in Graham Road.

The ramped entrance for vehicles is from Buckingham Road at the north east
corner of the building, opposite the Chandos Road junction. The exit ramp is at the
north-west corner onto Graham Road. The ramp contains raised-arm barriers and is
covered by a flat concrete roof just above ground floor level. Pedestrian accesses
are is at the north-east and south-east corners, via ticket-machine halls and
stairwells with lift. The south east entrance links to the end of the pedestrianised
shopping area of Montague Street, which also hosts a weekly street market.

The car park is a reinforced concrete deck structure dating from around 1965. Each
of its five storeys is split so that there are 10 individual levels. These provide a total
of 277 parking spaces, including eight for wheelchair users. The Buckingham Road
frontage is double-yellow lined and a controlled parking zone operates in the
surrounding streets. The car park is open for twenty four hour use.

A series of blue-painted, horizontal safety rails surround the outer edge of each
level of the building including the roof deck; these are mounted on the white painted
concrete frame, which characterises its external appearance from most street
views. The lowest deck over-sails the pavement below in Buckingham Road. An
under-croft retail unit, with wide plate-glass frontage, forms the ground floor frontage
onto Buckingham Road, between the two pedestrian entrances.

The Montague Street Conservation Area lies immediately to the south, including
listed buildings at no. 80 (Body Shop) and 103 (Entertainment Exchange). The
building adjoins but is outside the conservation area, which also continues along the
western side of Graham Road, where the exit ramp from the car park is opposite on
the eastern side of the street. Graham Road is characterised by Victorian
two-storey, painted-rendered houses. These are also found outside the
conservation area in Buckingham Road along with some brick-faced
Victo-Edwardian houses, which continue into the distinctive red-brick terrace of
houses along Chandos Road.

Proposal

The Council’s proposals are part of an overall renovation and refurbishment of the
building. Planning permission is sought for:



- New facade cladding. This comprises vertical fins on three sides of the
building in a range of colours, to be frame-mounted at intervals between each
level of the building including its roof. These would replace the blue-metal
safety rails but would extend the full height of each level

- A mesh safety grille / barrier on all sides of the building. On three sides this
would be mounted behind the proposed fins

- Demolition of the flat roof above the ground/first floor entrance & exit ramps
and the side walls which frame the Buckingham Road entrance

- New pedestrian entrance doors and glass screens, including removal and
rendering-over of high level areas of glass block and the introduction of
coloured vertical fins alongside the glazed screens.

- Infilling of exposed and broken stairwell windows with horizontal louvres

- A new external structure for signage, wrapping the north-east corner of the
building and spanning levels 3-5. The signage is indicated as a blue coloured
‘P’ on yellow background along with the building’s name.

Internal lighting, signage, flooring, painting and stairwell improvements are also
intended which do not in themselves require planning permission. The concrete
frame will be repaired and repainted to complement the proposed external fin
cladding.

The application follows a Council decision (AW/001/20-21, of 10" June 2020) by
Executive Members for Regeneration to undertake refurbishment and improvement
of the car park in recognition of its age, condition and its increasing importance in
the provision of town centre parking with the intended redevelopment of the Grafton
Road car park over a likely period of 2-4 years.

Relevant Planning History

None relevant. The car park was constructed following a grant of planning
permission in 1963.

Consultations
West Sussex County Council Highways: No objection

No increase in parking spaces to indicate higher traffic generation levels.
Recommend that new surfacing outside the building is discussed with the area
highway office before works take place.

Parking Services Manager: Supports Application
In response to neighbour comments received:

° Skateboarding: Signage which warns that skateboarding is not allowed, will be
renewed, as older signage has been removed.



° Other signage: is under consideration, to provide contact details in the event of
any issues, such as fire alarm sounding.

° Accessibility: The question of installing entrance shutters has been explored
previously but not pursued. It would be unlikely to prevent unwanted persons
entering the car park [for instance through the pedestrian doors]; it would be
costly and require overnight monitoring from a control room to manage any
instance of barriers not raising. Noise is also possible from shutters opening
and closing.

° Security: The building is currently patrolled by staff at intervals during the
daytime, handing over the security contractor in the evening for further
night-time visits. The Community Safety team maintains a log of issues raised,
other than by anonymous calls but currently this holds very little information
regarding the building. CCTV which covers the entrance and exit and the lift
areas as well as the payment machines, this is monitored by the Council's car
parks operations team throughout the day/evening

° Fire alarm: This is monitored at the at the High St MSCP is staffed which is
from 6am to 10pm

Environmental Health Officer: Comment awaited following recent visit to site and
neighbours

Borough Engineer: Comments

Recommend confirmation that increased loadings from additional fabric and
increased wind loadings have been assessed on the structure's stability. From a
drainage perspective, no changes are proposed which increase additional flow into
existing systems.

Fire Safety Officer: Comment requested.

The applicant has confirmed that external cladding / fins are fire rated and comply
with relevant standards. As far as we are aware the fire alarm system for the car
park is linked to a monitoring system which will send a response to the Fire Service.
There is a main control office at the High Street car park.

Community Wellbeing Officer: Comments

| can confirm that since Level 1 opened at Grafton car park, we have received several
reports that the skateboarders congregating there had been displaced to Buckingham Rd.
The noise and associated ASB from this would be considerable (there were daily
complaints from Grafton).

Place and Economy Officer: Supports Application

Car parking upgrades in town centres are vital as they play an important role in
creating a first impression of a place, as well as providing the functional aspects.
This development signals a step change in offer, whilst it also has an ambition to
enable greater electricity charging points and greater disabled parking. Whilst
sustainable and active travel are vitally important, it's also critical that we provide a



good experience for all users, by all modes of transport, who wish to access and
utilise Worthing town centre.

Representations:

A petition from nine households in Chandos Road and one other letter, also
from Chandos Road. Summarised as follows:

Petition
The need for an upgrade is supported but objections and concerns are:

Noise — frequent complaints to Council and police. Use by skateboarders of car
park and undercroft footway area is deeply loud, grating and reverberant into
neighbouring houses and gardens, day and night (8am up to midnight, with very
prolonged car and fire alarms also during nighttime) due to unrestricted access. Car
park has an echo-chamber effect, even smaller noises (conversations, phones,
shouting) are audible as are car-tyre ‘squealing’ on tight turns and the (at times)
squeaky barrier-arm mechanism. Removal of roof to ramp area will reduce sound
barrier.

Design - The proposed use of external fins is supported but the colour palette is
unanimously rejected as it is highly out of character with context and reinforces the
overbearing appearance of the building. Subtle contemporary or pastel colours
would be more appropriate, such as in the nearby current upgrade of Portland
Road. The proposed —storey entrance ‘P’ sign is too large and lurid yellow/blue.

Height — Proposed safety mesh with fins at roof level adds a storey height,
increasing overshadowing and overbearing reducing sunlight to rooms and gardens.

Light pollution — lighting and its management e.g. amount, intensity and dimming
sensors, should follow latest Institute of Lighting Engineers (ILE) guidance to reduce
current light spillage and glare which affects neighbours at night.

Future use - Usage and its impacts are likely to increase when Grafton MSCP is
demolished. This increases the need for management and security.

Please regard these comments not as a single objection but individual ones.
Neighbours would like to have been consulted about and participated in the
development of the proposals.

Letter

Comments overlap with those of the petition. The car park is not secured against
unauthorised access or use, such as skateboarding and is frequented by drug and
alcohol users. Concerned about noise, ongoing risks to personal safety, risk of
damage to vehicles. Council does not accept liability for risk of damage but
proposals would not improve security.

Relevant Planning Policies and Guidance

Worthing Core Strategy 2011: Policies 3, 6, 12, 16, 17, 18, 19 & 20



Worthing Local Plan, 2003 (saved policies): RES7, H18
Conservation Area Appraisal - Montague Street (WBC, 2005)
National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

National Planning Practice Guidance (CLG)

Policy Summary

The site is within the town centre. Policies 3 & 6 encourage sustainable
development which supports town centre activities and policy 12 promotes high
quality and accessible infrastructure.

Good quality design and architectural composition is required by Policy 16, the
NPPF refers to ‘high quality’. Design and use of materials should take into account
local, physical, historical and environmental characteristics of the area; appropriate
innovative and contemporary design solutions are encouraged. Safety and
accessibility are also important in the public realm. Development which may affect
heritage assets, including the setting of conservation areas and listed buildings,
should sustain and enhance them and make a positive contribution to local
distinctiveness.

Under polices 17 & 18 sustainable designs should address pollution, climate
change and energy efficiency, including provision for sustainable energy where
feasible, and a car parking strategy for the town centre is to balance parking
demand, economic activity in the town and provisions for pedestrians and cyclists
(policy 19 and T9). Development in sustainable locations, with good access to
services and public transport is supported by NPPF.

Residential amenities should not be unacceptably reduced by new and intensified
development under policies H18 and RES7, for by increased noise or other forms of
pollution.

These policies are largely repeated in those of the emerging Worthing Local Plan,
2021, which has been submitted to the Secretary of State for Housing Communities
and Local Government for independent examination and can be afforded a
reasonable degree of weight. In particular, policies which support sustainable
development and energy are of greater importance in line with the more recent
NPPF, 2021 and the Council’s Climate Change declaration of 2019.

The Conservation Area Appraisal for Montague Street identifies opportunities for
enhancement by the replacement of unsympathetic fabric in order to respect
individual buildings and the street scene.

Relevant Legislation
The Committee should consider the planning application in accordance with:

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that
the application may be granted either unconditionally or subject to relevant
conditions, or refused. Regard shall be given to relevant development plan policies,



any relevant local finance considerations, and other material considerations; and
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 that requires the
decision to be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 66 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
indicates that in considering whether to grant planning permission or permission in
principle for development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local
planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State the desirability of
preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which it possesses. Section 72 (1) states: indicates In the exercise,
with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, of any functions
under or by virtue of any of the provisions mentioned in subsection (2), special
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of that area.

Planning Assessment
Principle and Sustainability

As part of the town centre’s infrastructure, the principle of works required to
continue and update the function of the building is acceptable under policies 3 & 6.
This is subject to the consideration of the impact of these changes upon the
character of the area, neighbouring amenities and heritage, which are subject of
other polices and which are considered in the sections below.

In terms of sustainability, the proposed cladding of the building and modernisation of
its pedestrian entrances can create a more inviting and legible facility for future
users. The wider refurbishment includes:

° Upgraded power supply for potential installation of rapid charge (22kW)
electric vehicle charging points,

° New high-efficiency LED internal lighting system, motion-sensor controlled to
dim to a basic light level of 5%-50% luminance when not in use,

° New external lighting designed to limited glare and spill and to switch off
between 11pm and 7am, other than safety and security lighting,

° Extension of the deck drainage system to remove water pooling.

In accordance with policies for energy and sustainable construction, these
combined changes will contribute towards energy saving and the transition away
from fossil fuels towards electric vehicles. Cladding and drainage may provide
better protection of the integrity of the existing concrete structure.

Design and Heritage

All sides of the building, and the roof edge, would be clad with a first layer of
frame-mounted, expanded metal mesh to serve as a safety, anti-fall guard. This
would be coloured light blue on the western (rear) elevation and on the rear parts of
each side (north and south), where it would become the new visible outer skin of the
building. On the Buckingham Road (eastern) frontage and remainder to the two
sides, it would be light grey and set behind the new fagade fins.



10

The proposed vertical fagade fins on the Buckingham Road frontage (see image
below) and part of each side would be aluminium and pre-painted on both faces in a
range of colours, as shown in the images below. They are a uniform height of 1.8m
but at roof level they would sweep up to a maximum of 2.8m at the corners and
along the Buckingham Road frontage, to provide anti-fall safety, along with the 1.8m
mesh guard at this more exposed level. This increases the perceived height of the
building by between 0.9m and 1.8m along this frontage, although this is below the
top-most height of the existing access tower.

In the second image below, it can be seen that the fins are mounted at varying
intervals and perpendicular to the fagade. The application states that final locations
(intervals) may vary. In discussions it is also understood that the mounting angles
may be adjusted, so that a greater amount of each fin is outwardly visible. The
profiles / cross sections of the fins can also be either rectangular type as shown, or
tapered rather than square edges.

3.19 Proposed 3D Views

I e

el Rl [T
_OEETN

Proposed View on Buchingharn: Rosd Lockmg Scuth

[

KOS,

OO0
OO
OOy
*I'.l‘l’i'i:i:.' '

X

A '!.l‘i‘o.¢.|.

These variables present an opportunity for fine-tuning of the design which may
create either greater solidity or permeability, more or less visible colour and either
sharp or feathered edges.



The set of colours for the fins which are shown in these images may be described
as semi-pastel blue, green and gold. Their selection is influenced by the coastal
elements of sea, sky, downs and beach. They are also among the range of colour
sets in current use in the Council’s Time For Worthing (‘T4W’) promotions of the
Borough. The application refers to the assistance the proposals and colours would
offer in way-finding to and from the car park, which serves as one of the town centre
gateways, as well as enriching the appearance of the building.

As stated in policy 16, designs and the use of materials should take into account
local, physical, historical and environmental characteristics of an area, appropriate
contemporary design solutions are also encouraged.

In considering this proposal the use of cladding is regarded as a very positive
change. The vertical fins will counterbalance the long and prominent, horizontal
lines of the existing concrete-framed deck-structure, which currently has little or no
architectural relationship to more traditional buildings in adjoining streets. These
include the Conservation Area and listed building in Montague Street, against which
the building forms a backdrop. Their use alongside the doorways increases visibility
of these entrances and legibility of the building. The proposed mesh shrouding on
each side of the building also creates a sense of overall unity without appearing
dense or heavy.

The use of a light blue colour for areas of mesh visible from Graham Road
acknowledges the prevailing rendered light-coloured buildings there. The use of
grey mesh behind the fins provides a visually ‘quiet’ backcloth for the fins. The
colour choices of blue, green and gold or yellow set for the fins appear to be
harmonious in themselves but they have attracted strong views from residents as
being out of keeping with the context of Buckingham Road and adjoining streets.
They suggest that a colour set which borrows more from the pastels and brick
colours of adjoining streets would be appropriate for the fins.

Colour choice is among the more variable and subjective matters for consideration
but it is acknowledged that the proposed colours do not figure in the existing
streetscape, it may also be quite bold as a backdrop to the light painted render of
the Conservation Area and listed buildings. However it is also relevant that the
distinct function of the building as a key element of town centre infrastructure and
the improving of wayfinding to it, is an important objective of the proposed
development. A balance is sought between these considerations. In response the
applicant has commissioned a series of colour options and it is hoped that these
can be received and considered by Officers and made available to residents so that
views can be reported to the Committee.

Alongside this, the applicant has been requested to consider the use of angled
mountings for the fins together with tapered cross sections. This may increase their
prominence, architectural effect and finesse. Further information has also been
requested about their spacing intervals (it is noted that wind loading would need to
be checked separately). Conversely a smaller entrance ‘P’ sign mounting has been
requested, in order to reconcile its scale and design with the character of the street,
whilst providing clear visibility for users. Information about lesser signage, such as

11



12

in the image below, has also been requested. An update will be given at the
meeting

The demolition of the vehicular access ramp, roof and adjoining walls, along with a
new entrance height bar (image below) makes a relatively minor difference to the
appearance of the building. It would have an advantage of revealing the distinctive
and newly clad north east corner of the building and its entrance to a greater
degree. Remaining wall edges would be made good with painted render and

cappings.

|
‘ -
!

The new entrance doors with associated metal-framed glazed screens and vertical
fin detail would create a simpler and more contemporary appearance than the
existing. New concrete-sett paving along the undercroft area will also create a more
consistent and improved appearance at the site frontage. Elsewhere the proposed
white louvre infills to the existing stairwell windows are designed to deflect rain and
address an existing maintenance issue.

Neighbouring Amenities

In consideration of policy H18, the main potential impacts of the proposed
development on neighbours are those relating to demolition of the ramp ceiling and
entrance wall; the proposed cladding and external lighting. Other comments
received in relation to existing management matters are also referred to below,
although these are not directly matters for planning consideration.

The first area of change is the demolition of the ramp ceiling and entrance wall.
Neighbour comments refer to the increased risk of noise from this area and the
reduction of its barrier effect against noise from within the main part of the building.
The environmental health officer comments are awaited but informally, following a
recent joint site visit, it is suggested that the difference in noise escape is unlikely to
be significant and that removal of the noise-funneling effect of the existing structure
will be removed, allowing noise to move and dissipate rather than be concentrated
towards streets and neighbours to the east and west.

Within the building, the use of resin bonded flooring may affect the wheel-squealing
effect referred to. Whilst this does not require planning permission a further view
has been sought.

In terms of cladding, this may provide some degree of obstruction to internal noise
but as this would not be a solid barrier it is unlikely to significantly change noise



escape. Advice has also been requested upon the relative effect of using angled
rather than perpendicular-mounted external fins. An update will be given along with
the wider Environmental Health response.

The added height (+0.9m - +1.8m) created by the proposed mesh and fins,
particularly at the Buckingham Road frontage, will increase the overall perceived
height of the building. However, mindful of the existing size of the building
(approximately 14m in height) and the permeable nature of the cladding, it is also
considered that the effect on the massing and daylighting at neighbouring properties
is also unlikely to be significantly changed.

Proposed external lighting on the ceiling of the undercroft area is largely concealed
by the ceiling / soffit edge and is intended to comply with lighting institute guidance
(ILE) for the reduction of obtrusive light. Mindful of the line of sight between the
cluster of lights proposed at the northern end of the undercroft and houses in
Chandos Road, along with residual risks to Buckingham Road flats immediately
opposite, it is considered reasonable that further details be provided by
requirement of a planning condition which could be attached to any planning
permission. This can also include the numerous paired lights along the ramp edge
between Buckingham Road and Graham Road

The neighbour comments refer to the effects of existing unauthorised uses of the
building by skateboarders and others, including noise, music, apparent setting off of
car or fire alarms and a sense of personal security risk, and that some noise events
(alarms) have occurred during the night. The Community Wellbeing officer notes
that skateboarding was previously a problem at the Grafton Road car park deck
until it was displaced by the recent opening of the ‘Level 1’ outdoor restaurant and
exhibition space. In response the Council’'s Car Parking Manager has confirmed
that signage prohibiting skateboarding will be replaced and improved along with
new signage providing contact information for any enquiries regarding any car park
issues.

The car park is intended to remain open over twenty-four hours as at present and its
capacity would not be increased. Building security, including night patrols would
also continue. The provision of control shutters or doors is outside the scope of this
planning application. The Fire Safety officer confirms that cladding is to be A1 Fire
Safety rated and the fire alarm is connected to the fire service monitoring system.
The Car Parks Manager advises that the alarm is also monitored at the High St
MSCP is staffed which is from 6am to 10pm but not thereafter by the after-hours
security firm, although site inspections are made during the night-time

Summary

The application is an important part of the wider refurbishment and renovation of
this key building and its sustainable future use. The proposed use of cladding is
supported both by offers and in principle by residents. Further information regarding
colour choice options are due to be received in response to local representations
and officer reservations. This, together with further details regarding spacing
intervals and profiles for the proposed fins and a revised concept for the ‘P’ signage,
should allow a balance to be struck between the project objectives and neighbour
amenities. Planning conditions would be applied to ensure that any final designs are

13



14

adhered to, along with details of external lighting to be submitted for approval to
minimise risk of light pollution.

In terms of heritage, the proposals affect the setting of the conservation area and
listed buildings, but represent a significant improvement to the character and
appearance of the building, subject to finalisation of the colour choice and the
aforementioned details sought in relation to the fins.

Comments are due to be received from the Environmental Health and Fire Safety
officers and will be reported. Whilst existing issues of unauthorised use and noise
are largely outside the scope of the planning application and its consideration, it is
hoped that some parallel management measures in the use of signage to dissuade
unauthorised use and to provide contact information for future enquires to the
Council, will assist residents.

Recommendation: Approval, subject to the receipt of amended plans and
subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

1. Adherence to approved final plans

2. Standard time limit of 3 years for implementation

3. Sample of cladding materials and finishes for approval

4. Larger scale details of entrance doors and screens for approval, including

materials, finishes and profiles.
Details of external lighting to be submitted, including measures to minimise
light pollution

o



2

Application Number: |AWDM/1270/20 Recommendation - If the
Committee could still
determine the application it
would have agreed to refuse.

Site: Guest House, 6 Windsor Road

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for existing use (use
of 6 Windsor Road for the provision of housing for
those in need of emergency accommodation

(temporary)).
Applicant: Mr M Strom Ward:Selden
Agent: Mr Colm McKee
Case Officer: Rebekah Hincke

Not to Scale
Reproduced from OS Mapping with the permission of HMSO © Crown Copyright Licence number LA100024321




16

Background

An appeal has been lodged by the applicant against non-determination of this
application for a Lawful Development Certificate. This report outlines the case and
seeks to reach an indication as to what the decision of the Planning Committee
would have been if determining the application, which will assist the Council defend
the appeal.

Proposal, Site and Surroundings

The site comprises of a two storey semi-detached property located on the east side
of Windsor Road. The building has a large two storey rear projection similar to
others in the street to the immediate north, and has been extended to its south side
with a further two storey flat roofed extension and with a conservatory to the rear
elevation. Its front garden area is largely given over to parking with a hardstanding.

In January 2020 the Local Planning Authority became aware of works being carried
out at the property. It is understood that there was previously private owner’s
accommodation within the guest house, but recent works were carried out to
convert this space to provide 3 additional guest bedrooms with 14 rooms in total (5
single rooms, 9 double rooms). Four of the bedrooms have ensuite bathroom
facilities with the others sharing communal bath/shower rooms and wc. None of the
bedrooms have cooking facilities but have fridges. Further works to install
communal kitchens were included as part of the withdrawn planning application
AWDM/0611/20 with two communal kitchens and a communal dining area within the
rear conservatory.

It is understood that the premises are now licenced as an HMO since being subject
to mandatory licencing requirements from October 2018. Members should be
aware, however, that the definition of an HMO for licencing purposes differs to
planning in that it is taken to be an HMO if it meets one of the definitions in Section
254 of the Housing Act.

The application, now the subject of the recent appeal (Reference:
APP/M3835/X/21/3279523), is for a Lawful Development Certificate which seeks to
establish the lawfulness of the existing use for the provision of housing for those in
need of emergency temporary accommodation. The application is made on the
grounds that the use has continued for more than 10 years.

The following evidence has been provided by the applicant in support of the
application:

° Item 1 - Accommodation Officer: Email from Adur & Worthing Accommodation
Officer dated 11.5.2020 — stating that 5 months ago one guest house used for
emergency accommodation was taken over by new owners and outlining
meetings with council officers to ensure property met the criteria for an HMO.

° Item 2 - Fitzroy Lodge Letter from occupier of Fitzroy Lodge 2-4 Windsor Road
dated 4.8.20 - stating that they understand the property to have been in
continuous use since at least 2008 as temporary accommodation on
agreement with Worthing Council for housing homeless individuals.



Item 3 - Revision List of Guest since 2008: List of clients (categorised
Adur/Worthing or Adur and Worthing not individuals) from April 2008 to April
2019 (This lists customer ‘date in’ with gaps between April 2010-Jan 2011,
May 2012-Sept 2012, Nov 2012-Aug2013, Sept 2013-Aug 2014, Sept 2014,
Nov 2014, March 2015, where no ‘date in’ but this does not record date of
leaving).

Item 4 - Copy of Castle tenancies from AWC with tenancy commencement
dates and termination dates listed by room from 19.2.2001 to 27.07.2020
summarised as follows:

Room 1 limited data with no information on stays/duration between Feb 2008
to March 2020.

Room 2 duration of occupation between 1 wk and 1 year approx. Gap in data
from Oct 2008 to April 2010 and March 2011 to March 2016.

Room 3 data from March 2020 only.
Room 4 data from March 2020 only.
Room 5 data from March 2020 only.

Room 6 duration of occupation between 1 and 6 months approximately, gap in
data from May 2009 to Feb 2016.

Room 7 data from March 2020 only.

Room 8 duration of occupation between 1 night and 2 years 2 months but with
most durations being 1-2 months approximately. Gap in data from May 2009 to
Feb 2011 and March 2011 to March 2016.

Room 9 duration of occupation between 1 night and 1 year 2 months approx.
Gap in data from May 2009 to Feb 2011, March 2011 to Aug 2012, and Sept
2012 to March 2016.

Room 10 duration of occupation between 2 days and 6 months but with most
being 1-4 months approx. Gap in data from Feb 2008 to Oct 2016.

Room 11 limited data with stays of between 3 weeks and 2 months approx.
with no data between Feb 2008 and March 2020

Room 12 duration of occupation between 5 days to 12 months but with most
tenancies being between 1 and 4 months. Gap in data from Oct 2012 to May
2016

Room 13 duration of occupation between 3 days and 2 years approximately
but with most tenancies being 1-2 months. Gap in data from Feb 2011 to
March 2012 and April 2012 to March 2016.

Room 14 duration of occupation between 1 night and 9 months approximately.
No data before 1.12.2016.

17



18

° Item 5 - Email from Adur & Worthing Acquisitions & Landlord Support Officer
outlining high demand for short term temporary accommodation, and confirms
that guest house has been used by Council for this purpose for at least the last
10 years with block booking of 7 rooms and other rooms on ad-hoc basis, and
will be a valuable resource at times of need for homeless households requiring
temporary accommodation.

° Item 6 - Windsor Clinic: Letter from ‘The Windsor Clinic’ dated 8.8.2020 -
stating that they have been a neighbour of Castle Guest House since 2007
and it has been used to house various individuals for the homeless
department of various councils including Worthing and they are not aware of it
being used for any other purpose throughout that period.

° Item 7 - Email from Planning Services Manager querying whether any
consideration has been given to a Certificate of Lawfulness Application if the
use has existed since 2008.

The Council’'s Housing Needs Manager has provided statements from 4 former
residents outlining the following arrangements for their tenancies between 2016 and
2020:

° 6 months tenancy, main residence, breakfast provided, room cleaned, fresh
bedding and towels provided.

° 12 months tenancy, main residence, no breakfast provided, room serviced
sometimes, only council lettings known

° 9 months tenancy, main residence, breakfast provided at the Wolsey Hotel, no
room cleaning but linen/towels provided

° 15 months tenancy, main residence, breakfast provided, room cleaned,
bedding and towels provided.

Relevant Planning History
01/01241/FULL - Single storey side extension STATUS: CCN 9th January 2002.

AWDM/0611/20 - Retrospective application for change of use from guest house
(Class C1) to House in Multiple Occupation (HMO -sui generis) with provision for
temporary accommodation and owners accommodation, including demolition of
chimney to east, single-storey extension to east to form second floor and 1no. front
(west) rooflight, along with associated alterations.STATUS: Withdrawn 17th July
2020.

WB/0433/74 Change of use to Guesthouse. Approved 30.04.1974

WB/0487/77 Erection of 2-storey extension at side of existing guest house to
provide owners living accommodation. Approved 19.07.1977

WB/0084/80 Two storey extension partly at side and at rear Approved 29.02.1980
WB/01/01241/FULL Single storey side extension Approved 09.02.2001

Consultations
Sussex Police have made the following comments:

Thank you for your correspondence of the 19th August 2020, advising me of a
planning application for Lawful Development Certificate for existing use (use of 6
Windsor Road for the provision of housing for those in need of emergency



accommodation (temporary) at the above location, for which you seek advice from a
crime prevention viewpoint.

| have had the opportunity to examine the detail within the application and in an
attempt to reduce the opportunity for crime and the fear of crime | offer the following
comments.

The National Planning Policy Framework demonstrates the government’s aim to
achieve healthy, inclusive and safe places which are safe and accessible, so that
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion. With the level of crime and anti-social behaviour in Worthing
district being above average when compared with the rest of Sussex, | have major
concerns with the proposals, however, additional measures to mitigate against any
identified local crime trends and site specific requirements should be considered.

| refer the applicant to previous correspondence from this office Your Ref:
AWDM/0611/20 dated the 1st June 2020 and Our Ref: LM/WOR/20/14A dated the
4th June 2020 to which all comments remain extant.

This application was objected to by Sussex police due to on-going issues with
anti-social behaviour and high levels of police attendance to deal with said issues
impacting on police resources.

Having re-consulted with Worthing Local Policing Prevention Team there continues
to be a very high number of on-going calls to this address where police are still
reqularly attending due to issues relating to anti-social behaviour. If the lawful
Development Certificate for existing use (use of 6 Windsor Road for the provision of
housing for those in need of emergency accommodation (temporary) is granted
then this application would place an ongoing additional burden upon Police
resources.

To that effect Sussex Police object to this application.
Thank you for giving me an opportunity to comment.

The Crime & Disorder Act 1998 heightens the importance of taking crime prevention
into account when planning decisions are made. Section 17 of the Act places a
clear duty on both police and local authorities to exercise their various functions with
due regard to the likely effect on the prevention of crime and disorder. You are
asked to accord due weight to the advice offered in this letter which would
demonstrate your authority’s commitment to work in partnership and comply with
the spirit of The Crime & Disorder Act.

Adur & Worthing Councils:

The Environmental Health officer has confirmed no comments.
Private Sector Housing — no comments received.

The Housing Needs Manager has provided the following comments and further
information:

19



20

In Housing Needs view the premises has been in use as per::

17.29 A property is an HMO |f it satisfies the conditions set out in sections 254(2) to
(4), has been declared an HMO under section 255 or is a converted block of flats to
which section 257 applies. Privately owned bed and breakfast or hostel
accommodation that is used to accommodate a household pursuant to a
homelessness function, and which is the household’s main residence, will fall within
this definition of an HMO for the housing of homeless applicants or placements of
homeless under our discretionary powers and has not operated as a guest house,
as per Eve's letter, since 2010 she has only taken bookings from Local Authorities
which would confirm its use for this purpose.

A list of tenancies for each room has been provided with the following further
comment:

a) that other authorities made placements at the premises, Brighton and Hove being
one of them; | can confirm this as worked for Brighton and Hove Council in a
number of roles all attached to homelessness and Castles was a premises used,
bookings were often moved on from The Wolsey to The Castles once known and
considered able to manage a tenancy in a premises that also had households with
children.

b) additional rooms were provided when Eve sold the Castles as she was living in
the Castles and had what was effectively a self contained flat within the premises
before this.

Representations

Thirty representations have been received from occupiers of nearby properties
including in Windsor Road, Brighton Road, Alexandra Road, Ham Road, and Dawes
Avenue, raising objections to the application as summarised below:

Highways Access and Parking Lack of parking for residents and staff

Loss of amenity

Privacy Light and Noise

Increase in anti-social behaviour, social problems/drugs/crime have become

worse since HMO/recently/when under new management, not the case for last

10 years as Guest House, Police in regular attendance, fear/intimidation for

residents, concern that this is close to school and family housing

° Risk of fire with smoking inside the house and insufficient fire and safety
provisions for number of residents

e Wil staff be available to deal with any difficulties/lack of supervision to support
vulnerable residents

° Overdevelopment/overcrowding/more intensive use as a result of the changes

made/how it's operated

° Other more suitable premises available elsewhere for occupants with potential
issues

° Concentration of other similar properties in East Worthing causes problems

Lack of consultation with neighbours

° Lack of information/evidence/confusing information


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/254
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/254
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/255
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/257

Underhand way of obtaining permission

Gaps in record of tenancies

If HMO, use has continued without permission/no licence

As this is residents primary address a change of use has occurred

As alterations have been made the property, this has changed use to HMO,

alterations would not have been needed if already an HMO

° Owners accommodation has been converted to more rooms — 14 rooms,
garden is no longer private but shared, communal kitchens added

e  Company created to run an HMO in August 2019

° If owners consulted with Council about HMO they knew a change of use had
occurred

e  Why would WBC housing use as an unlicensed HMO, suggest because they
believed it was a guest house

° If an HMO there should be evidence of tenancy agreements

° Has operated as Guest House for many years albeit for emergency temporary
accommodation

e  This was run under the same ownership as Wolsey Hotel both run as B&B
under previous ownership with a mix of typical B&B Guest and referrals from
local authority but last 7-8 years was only from Housing Department.

) Smaller number of clients previously and with owners accommodation

° Signage displayed as B&B until recently, advertising ‘vacancies’

° Marketing information from 2019 details as guest house with separate owners
accommodation and garden

° Business rates record as Boarding House and Premises

) Between 2005 and 2015 Castles Guest House was offering Guest House
accommodation

° Drain on public funds/adds pressure with lack of joined up approach to issues

° Property values affected

The previous owner of Castles Guest House has made the following comments:
| am the owner of the Wolsey Hotel in Brighton Road.

From 2006 to November 2019 | also owned the Castles Guest House at 6 Windsor
Road. | bought the Castles as a Guest House and | sold it on the understanding it
was a Guest House.

Until 2010 | had a mixture of guests, i.e. typical guest house guests together with
guests referred by Adur and Worthing housing departments, but only after this date
did | take guests just from these Local Authorities. However the premises were
always run as a Guest House. The councils were fully aware of this.

During my ownership there were staff on the premises at all times, supporting and
supervising the occupants. At no time was it a HMO.

The applicant's agent has responded to points made in the representations in a
letter dated 02.11.20 including the following points:

° It is paramount to note the government is clear (in relation to Lawful
Development Certificates) where is states:

21



22

‘The planning merits of the use, operation or activity in the application are not
relevant. The issue of a certificate depends entirely on factual evidence about
the history and planning status of the building or other land and the
interpretation of any relevant planning law or judicial authority’.

° I note that the previous owner has stated that the unit ‘accommodated a
mixture of guests’. Where as we have not seen any evidence to substantiate
this claim, the previous owner only claims this to be until 2010. Therefore a
10-year use would still apply and as such the Lawful Development could be
granted.

That said, for the avoidance of doubt we believe the balance of probability points
strongly in favour of the lawful use applied for long before 2010, and not only since
2010, simply due to the evidence we have presented.

Further to this, it would need demonstrated that the level and frequency of the
alleged ‘mixture’ of other guests was significant enough to go beyond ancillary
occasional use, and that in planning terms the use by these other guests would be
on power with, compete with or be more dominant than the temporary
accommodation use. At present such counter evidence has not been provided.

I note various comments about a ‘guest house’ sign, and that the property was
registered as a guest house. The existence of a sign would not surpass the
evidence that has been presented by the applicant with the Lawful Development
Certificate. The existence of a sign would not outweigh a proven 10 years (excess)
of use.

Relevant Legislation

Section 191(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) enables
anyone to apply to the LPA for a decision whether a specified existing use,
operation, or failure to comply with a planning condition or limitation, which has
already been carried out on land, is lawful for planning purposes.

Subsection (4) of section 191 provides that if, on an application under the section,
the LPA are provided with information satisfying them of the lawfulness, at the time
of the application, of the use, operations or other matter described in the
application, or that description as modified by the LPA or a description substituted
by them, they shall issue a certificate to that effect; and, in any other case, they
shall refuse the application.

Planning Assessment

The relevant consideration is a matter of fact and degree whether the evidence
submitted in support of the application demonstrates on the balance of probability
that the use has existed for 10 or more years and is therefore exempt from
enforcement action, with the burden of proof on the applicant. The planning merits
of the use are not relevant in making a decision.



The application has been made on the basis of the following use:

Lawful Development Certificate for existing use (use of 6 Windsor Road for the
provision of housing for those in need of emergency accommodation (temporary)).

The key issue to consider is whether the existing use as described by the applicant
has remained throughout the relevant 10 year period from 11 August 2010 to 11
August 2020 when the application was made.

The applicant has not attempted to define the particular use class within which the
current use of the building would fall into but describes it as ‘the provision of
housing for those in need of emergency accommodation (temporary)’. The absence
of a particular use class definition is, perhaps, indicative of the way the use has
evolved over time and is a reflection of the complex case law surrounding the use of
accommodation by local authorities in discharging their housing duties to avoid
families and individuals from becoming homeless.

The evidence submitted to support the Certificate of Lawfulness has gaps in terms
of the number of rooms used for temporary accommodation at any time and there is
some doubt, therefore, that the use has been continuous throughout the 10 year
period. Whilst, the Agents comment that any occasional use by traditional bed and
breakfast quests was limited and not affect the predominant use is accepted, there
are other more compelling reasons why the Council could not support the grant of a
Certificate which is set out below when considering the more recent use of the
premises and the alterations by the present owners.

The planning history indicates that the last known lawful use of the property is as a
Guest House, dating back to a planning permission in 1974 and subsequent
alterations to provide separate owners accommodation.

Guest Houses fall within use class C1 which also include hotels, motels, boarding
houses and bed and breakfast premises and would essentially comprise of serviced
sleeping accommodation (and meals) on a short term basis. Given the existence of
a separate unit of accommodation (C3) the lawful use of the premises before the
current owners purchased the property was a mixed use C1 / C3 use (sui generis).

The applicants when they purchased the property had to apply for an HMO under
the relevant Housing Act legislation and in doing so started altering the property to
comply with the Councils guidelines on HMO accommodation. The separate flat
was converted into additional rooms and the Council started using the premises
exclusively for temporary and emergency accommodation. The owners have
unwittingly materially changed the use of the property from one sui generis use to
another. On this basis alone the Council could not have granted a Certificate of
Lawful Use.

In terms of the current use of the premises, its use exclusively by local authorities is
likely to fall within the definition of a Hostel and this is explained in more detalil
below.

It is worth saying from the outset that assessing whether a use is a Hotel, an HMO
or a Hostel use depends very much on the individual circumstances of each case.
However, case law and at times government guidance has attempted to assist local

23



24

authorities make judgements on the matter. The difficulty in planning law is a
by-product of the national housing crisis where local authorities are often forced to
locate households and individuals in any available accommodation and this often
means that people are placed in Hotels and Bed and Breakfast accommodation.
Whether a material change of use occurs depends on the level of use. For
instance, one family staying a week in a large direct result Hotel such as Premier
Inn would not constitute a material change of use.

Guest Houses

The courts have attempted to define a ‘hotel’ and in Mayflower Cambridge v SoS
1975 it was stated that the essence of a hotel is that it takes transient passengers or
travellers, who require short stay only. In Breachberry Ltd v SoS & Shepway B. C.
1984 it was suggested that it was not essential to classification as a hotel or guest
house that services be provided. Section 1(3) of the Hotel Proprietors Act 1956
defines a hotel as “an establishment held up by a proprietor as offering food, drink
and if so required, sleeping accommodation, without special contract, to any
traveller presenting himself who appears able and willing to pay a reasonable sum
for the services and facilities provided and who is in a fit state to be received.”
Therefore, the level of services provided (which is not entirely clear from the
evidence provided in this case), is one of the relevant considerations.

In this particular case looking at the typical duration of stay and that rooms have
been occupied within the property as the occupants main residence (albeit
temporarily) the current use does not clearly fall within the normal parameters of a
C1 use class.

HMOs

It is relevant to note that the previous planning application AWDM/0611/20 sought to
regularise the existing use as a House in Multiple Occupation with provision for
temporary accommodation and owner’s accommodation. Alterations to the property
removed the owner's accommodation and the application was withdrawn when it
was considered that a Lawful Development Certificate may be easier to secure.

Class C4 of the Use Classes Order relates to Houses in Multiple Occupation
(HMOs) where occupants are not classed as living as a single household and share
only minimal communal facilities within the building, such as a bathroom, wc, or
cooking facilities. This covers a small shared dwelling house occupied by up to six
unrelated residents as their main residence and with larger or more intensively used
HMOs being sui generis.

In this case, the evidence could point towards the current use being akin to a larger
HMO (sui generis) with residents occupying the property as their main residence
and sharing cooking facilities and some bathrooms. Although the accounts of former
residents refer to breakfast being provided and some servicing of rooms in their
time of occupation, these accounts are limited and the current layout indicates
communal kitchen areas but they are understood to have only been recently
installed as a result of licensing requirements for an HMO and so have not been in
existence throughout the relevant period.



The use of the premises by local authorities is also highly relevant and has a
bearing on assessing the current use of the premises.

Hostel

There is no definition of a hostel in planning law and this use was removed from the
C1 classification in 1994 when this change specifically reclassified them as sui
generis.

In 1985, in the High Court judgement in the case of Panayi v SSE and Hackney
LBC [JPL 783], it was argued that the presence and use of some of the features
below combined were sufficient to distinguish the use of the premises as that of a
hostel:

° The presence of dormitories and/or communal or shared facilities.

) The use of the premises in accommodating specific categories of people, e.g.,
the young, or the homeless.

° Whether the premises are serviced and/or supervised. « Whether payment is
made by the local authority.

° Whether payment is on a nightly basis.

) Whether the residents are transient in the sense that they are ‘placed’ in the
accommodation whilst awaiting accommodation elsewhere.

° The requirements of fire or safety certificates indicating the type of usage.

° The display of such notices or other indicators which may indicate the type of
usage: e.q., fire certificates, public fire notices of use for staff and guests.

Also relevant to this case is the Court of Appeal decision in Westminster City
Council vs Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government which
considered an enforcement notice alleging a material change of use from a Hotel to
a mixed use of Hotel (C1) and a hostel use. Consideration was given by the original
Inspector to the guidance contained in Circular 03/2055 (since revoked) including
reference to the above case and the following in relation to hotels and hostels:

59. The C1: hotels use class remains unchanged from the origins 1987 Order (as
amended by Sl 1994/724 which removed hostels from this classification). The C1:
Hotels class includes not only hotels, but also motels, bed and breakfast premises,
boarding and guest houses. These are premises which provide a room as
temporary accommodation on a commercial, fee-paying basis, where meals can be
provided but where residential care is not provided.

60. Hostels were excluded from the Use Classes Order in 1994 and are therefore
sui generis.

61. There is no definition of ‘hostel’ in planning law. A hostel usually provides
overnight or short-term accommodation which may be supervised, where people
(including sometimes the homeless) can usually stay free or cheaply. Hostels may
provide board, although some may provide facilities for self-catering. The element
of supervision should not be relied upon as a determining factor but as a factor to
take into account in consideration of the ue class of the premises.

The inspector had examined the points in the Panayi case and found some
elements to be a hostel use but no part of the premises exclusively used as a hostel

25



26

and no part exclusively as a hotel but the judge considered that a mixed use can
subsist where the different elements are not associated with particular parts of the
premises. The judge acknowledged that the Panayi case ‘does not provide a
definitive checklist of relevant factors and the existence of some factors pointing in
the direction of hostel use is not necessarily determinative.” In considering whether
a material change of use had occurred the judge also pointed to the Inspectors
failure to have regard to a relevant matter, namely the off-site effects of the current
use on residential amenity.

Whether a change of use has occurred within the relevant 10 year period

From the evidence provided it is not precise as to what basis the accommodation
has been offered and with contradictory accounts from the previous owner and in
representations. However it is understood that rooms do not provide dormitory
accommodation, shared kitchen facilities have been more recently installed, but
some accounts from tenants refer to breakfast being provided and rooms serviced.

Although ‘tenancies’ have varied in length from 1 night to more than 2 years, it is
clear that the accommodation has not been solely for short term or nightly
accommodation.

It is noted that there are amenity issues raised by nearby occupiers particularly as a
result of comings and goings generated, and anti-social behaviour, but it is
acknowledged that this could be equally true of guest houses, HMQO’s or hostels
depending on the intensity of the use or the way it is managed. When considering
the lawfulness of the existing use these effects are relevant only to the extent of
establishing whether the intensity or character of the use has altered.

There does, however, appear to be a correlation between the physical changes
carried out to the building to meet HMO licensing requirements since the change of
ownership that occurred in 2019 and when there have been more instances of
noise, disturbance and anti-social behaviour, as referred to in representations and
the Police response, which could point towards a difference in the way the premises
have been operated at the time of making the application when compared with the
operation under the previous ownership prior to November 2019 for example, with
less or no on site supervision provided at the time of making the application.

Whilst planning is concerned with land and buildings and not the identity of potential
occupiers, it is recognised that there may be differing effects of such uses
dependant on whether the accommodation is long-term or transient
accommodation.

The more recent history of the premises suggests that it is being used as a Hostel
for temporary and emergency accommodation.

Conclusion

The use of the property is very controversial in the area and at times has caused
anti-social behaviour. The evidence points to the fact that historically the premises
have been used for temporary accommodation to some extent and often exclusively
(apart from the owners accommodation). However, what is clear is that the current
owners have made significant alterations to the property which have materially



changed its use. More recently and to address concerns about the lack of on site
accommodation an office building has been erected at the rear of the property. This
unauthorised building further reinforces the fact that the Council was unable to grant
a Certificate of Lawfulness and if the Council could still determine the application it
would be refused.

Recommendation

The Planning Committee is asked to consider whether, if they could still
determine the application they would have agreed the following
recommendation:

REFUSE for the reason:

The Local Planning Authority is not satisfied, on the balance of probability, that the
use of the property for the provision of housing for those in need of emergency
accommodation (temporary) use has been carried out continuously throughout the
relevant 10 year period, resulting in a material change of use. In reaching this
decision the Local Planning Authority has had due regard to the loss of the self
contained managers accommodation and the recent erection of an office building in
the curtilage of the property.

27



>
e

.
‘ "

o
<

Not to Scale

et
e

e
<

h&ﬂfo.f
e et

o
o
gt
gt

<

.
o ﬁ
o
TN e,
o el S
AT S,
Setetetele ieteteteh
o

[11]
>
x =2 | |5
o Bm =
7)) o
A. %w m
c =
S O2l g3
© %.m MD
2 =) S| %
r) ~wn | O
m o (o) 7] mm
m m c @m© Bn
= T T .| &
o p= Mn S|
% % .wa mmP
o
4 | e 2 219
T =27 Y
© © ©
o o 8 |8|w
(1’4 o €2
< " o =16
g
- m 0 .L Sm
ol |E| 158 |8|E
- ol .E
0 S s 7 S[P] «
= - > C Cl o
< S = 0| c
[a] = c = >l
s c o9 Ofc| ®
< o O .£ m(=|O
.
)
0o
€
S
z ..
n —
-~ © c ey
T 0
0 o wtO
sl (s |& S| 3|
Q. = - o| O ©
< () o <] <O

Reproduced from OS Mapping with the permission of HMSO © Crown Copyright Licence number LA100024321

28



Proposal, Site and Surroundings

This application seeks full permission for the construction of a grey clad storage
building to the eastern part of the application site. The proposal has been amended
during its determination incorporating a reduction in the building footprint from
1,653sgm to 1,320 sgm and a re-siting away from the northern boundary to allow a
tree landscape buffer on the boundary of the site. The area of the site is currently
used for parking, although there appears to be other opportunities for parking
elsewhere on the site.

The proposed building would be located between the applicant’s existing storage
building to the west and an industrial building in separate ownership to the east. The
railway line is to the south and the nearest residential properties to the north in King
Edward Avenue - these properties have quite long rear gardens and hence the
dwellings are about 25 metres away from the proposed building. A Tree
Preservation Order relates to the belt of trees further to the western part of the
northern boundary of the site.

As the proposed floorspace exceeds 1,000 square metres, the application is
classified as a ‘major’ development and therefore needs to be presented to the
Committee for determination.

Relevant Planning History

AWDM/0408/18: External and internal alterations to existing warehouse including
alterations to fenestration and doors and addition of cladding to building, new front
entrance gates to west boundary, erection of 2.4m high paladin fencing within site,
replacement external fire escape stairs, provision of modular office building on
frontage and formation of car park to rear with 41 spaces - granted permission in
2018

AWDM/0181/20: Proposed 26no. self storage units accessed from Ivy Arch Road -
granted permission in 2020.

Consultations
Environmental Health

| have concerns about potential noise disturbance to neighbouring residential
dwellings which could be caused by increased vehicle movements, door slams,
loading/unloading of items, trolleys and potential noise from the grilles/louvres for
mechanical extract which are labelled on drawing 15175/2-106 - Proposed
elevations.

Due to the proximity of this site to existing residential dwellings, conditions in
respect of hours of use, construction management, noise attenuation are
recommended. As the site is potentially contaminated, a full contamination condition
is also required.

29



30

As this is a major application, the applicant must follow the Air Quality & Emissions
Mitigation Guidance for Sussex (2020)

http://www.sussex-air.net/ImprovingAQ/GuidancePlanning.aspx.

The intention of the guidance is to ensure the integration of appropriate mitigation
via an emissions mitigation assessment and, where necessary, to identify air quality
impacts through an impact assessment. The emissions mitigation assessment is
used to inform the level of mitigation required to help reduce/offset the potential
effect on health and the local environment. Consultation with Public Health &
Regulation is advised at an early stage.

West Sussex Highways

This proposal is of the erection of a self-storage building (Use B8). The site is
located on Ivy Arch Road, an unclassified road subject to a speed restriction of 30
mph. WSCC in its role as Local Highway Authority (LHA) raises no highway safety
concerns for this application.

Access and Visibility

The applicant proposes no alterations to the existing vehicular access
arrangements. From inspection of local mapping, there are no apparent visibility
issues with the existing point of access onto the maintained highway.

The applicant has provided TRICS trip generation data to support this application.
The existing storage use generates approximately 122 daily two-way trips, whilst
the proposed storage use is anticipated to raise this number to 160 daily two-way
trips (+38 trips). Whilst this proposal will bring about an intensification of use, the
rise in trips is not considered significant and is not anticipated to result in a highway
safety concern.

An inspection of collision data provided to WSCC by Sussex Police from a period of
the last five years reveals no recorded injury accidents attributed to road layout
within the vicinity of the site. Therefore, there is no evidence to suggest the existing
access is operating unsafely or that the proposal would exacerbate an existing
safety concern.

Parking and Turning

The proposed storage building will be sited in the location of the existing car park.
Of the 41 existing car parking spaces, 4 will be retained (-37 spaces). Whilst this
appears significant, the LHA acknowledges the characteristics of self-storage use,
whereby visits to the site are anticipated to be short or infrequent.

In addition, the Transport Statement indicates that the site benefits from existing
space that can be used for informal parking purposes, which is confirmed when
viewing the site from local mapping. Considering this, the LHA considers the
proposed parking provision to be sufficient. There is plentiful space on-site for
turning to be achievable, allowing vehicles to exit the site in a reverse gear.



In the interests of sustainability and as a result of the Government’s ‘Road to Zero’
strategy for at least 50% of new car sales to be ultra-low emission by 2030, electric
vehicle (EV) charging points should be provided for all new non-residential
developments. Active EV charging points should be provided for the development in
accordance with current EV sales rates within West Sussex (Appendix B of WSCC
Guidance on Parking at New Developments). Ducting should be provided to all
remaining parking spaces to provide ‘passive’ provision for these to be upgraded in
future.

Conclusion

The LHA does not consider that this proposal would have an unacceptable impact
on highway safety or result in ‘severe’ cumulative impacts on the operation of the
highway network, therefore is not contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework (paragraph 109), and that there are no transport grounds to resist the
proposal.

West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service

Request that an additional fire hydrant is installed to be secured by condition.
Representations

1 representation received regarding the plans as originally submitted:

Having reviewed the above planning application, we have the following comments:
A 3 storey building is out of keeping with the adjacent buildings that are only a
maximum of two storey. This will be in direct view South of our house, overlooking
our property, potentially restricting light in our back garden. This will cause reduced
views of the trees and greenery to the south of our dwelling as well as the railway
and views over the Worthing town to the sea. We have been very supportive of
Ready Steady Store applications in the past but feel the building is too high for this
location. We urge you to reject the application in its current guise.

No comments received in respect of the amended plans.

Relevant Planning Policies and Guidance

Worthing Core Strategy (2011):  Policy 3 Providing for a Diverse and Sustainable
Economy, Policy 4 Protecting Employment Opportunities, Policy 16 Built
Environment and Design, Policy 17 Sustainable Construction, Policy 18 Sustainable

Energy and Policy 19 Sustainable Travel

Worthing Local Plan (WBC 2003) (saved policies where relevant)
Supplementary Planning Document ‘Sustainable Economy’ (WBC 2012)

31



32

Relevant Legislation
The Committee should consider the planning application in accordance with:

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that
the application may be granted either unconditionally or subject to relevant
conditions, or refused. Regard shall be given to relevant development plan policies,
any relevant local finance considerations, and other material considerations

Planning Assessment

The main issues in the determination of the application are the principle of the
development, the impact upon the visual character of the area and the amenities of
surrounding neighbouring properties and highway matters.

The application site is within a protected employment area as set down by the Core
Strategy and therefore the principle of development is acceptable. The 2020
permission for self storage units, which has been partially implemented, also
established the principle of development on this part of the site, albeit of a much
lower scale than is proposed under this application. Nonetheless, the site is in
between existing industrial buildings to the east and west and therefore appears an
appropriate site for further development.

The nearest residential properties in King Edward Avenue have quite long rear
gardens and are sufficiently distant from the site that in scale terms, a building
which is slightly higher than existing buildings as proposed here would not have a
material impact sufficient enough to warrant the refusal of planning permission. A
feature of the site, though, is that the existing building is partly screened by a line of
preserved trees, but these do not extend to the western part of the site, where the
proposed buildings would be located. Despite the distance between the site and
residential properties being acceptable in its own right, your Officers consider that
the proposal represents a good opportunity to extend this landscaped screen along
the boundary.

As originally submitted, the footprint of the building was almost adjacent to the
northern boundary line and would not have allowed for such landscape screening.
Following negotiations with the applicant’s agent, the building’s size, design and
siting have been revised so that sufficient space is maintained to enable for a
landscaped area to be provided to the north of the site which will have the benefit of
softening the impact of the building when viewed from the nearest residential
properties as well as increasing planting in the area. Your Officers consider this to
be a welcome amendment.

It is also noted that the 2020 permission was for units that would have been
accessed externally (and historically) the area was used for lorry turning purposes
in connection with the previous use of the site for food production and distribution.
The proposal would result in activity being contained within the building and is
considered to be a further benefit of the proposal. It is noted that the existing
storage use does not appear to have generated complaints from neighbours in
respect of its operation and the proposed use would appear to be less intensive that
previous uses on the site or other general industrial uses that the site could



legitimately be used for. As recommended by the Environmental Health Manager
conditions can be added to deal with hours of use and appropriate noise attenuation
for mechanical plant.

The remaining issue is in respect of highways matters given that at present the
application site has 41 car parking spaces on this part of the application site and
this will reduce to 4as part of the proposal. The previous permission for storage
units on this part of the site has already established the principle of the loss of these
parking spaces which were used in relation to the previous use on the site. It is
evident that the parking area is significantly underused and the nature of storage
use is that most visits to the site are of a transitory nature rather than requiring a
longer parking presence. There still remains a large service area on the southern
side of the site which has been used previously and would still allow for any
additional informal parking should the need arise. In the absence of any objection
from the Highways Authority, and also noting the central location of the site close to
the town centre and railway station in any case, it is not considered that a refusal
could be justified on highways grounds.

In conclusion, the site is an underused part of an existing employment site and this
application offers an opportunity for the existing occupier to further rationalise their
operations. The welcome amendments to the application will reduce the impact
upon neighbouring properties and will enhance the landscaping and hence visual
appearance of the site. Accordingly, it is recommended that permission be granted.

Recommendation
GRANT permission
Subject to Conditions:-

1. Approved Plans.

2. Full Permission.

3 Use of units limited to 7.00am to 10.00pm Monday to Friday, 7.00am and
7.00pm Saturday and 10.00am and 4.00pm Sunday and Bank Holiday

4.  Works of construction or demolition, including the use of plant and machinery,
necessary for implementation of this consent shall be limited to the following
times.

Monday - Friday 08:00 - 18:00 Hours

Saturday 09:00 - 13:00 Hours

Sundays and Bank Holidays no work permitted

Any temporary exception to these working hours shall be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority at least five days in advance of works
commencing. The contractor shall notify the local residents in writing at least
three days before any such works.

5.  Construction work shall not commence until a scheme for the protection of the
existing neighbouring premises from dust has been submitted to and approved
by the local planning authority. The scheme as approved shall be operated at
all times during the demolition and construction phases of the development.

If any fork lift trucks are to be used on site they should be electrically powered
with a white noise reversing alarm.

33



34

Details of the proposed lighting scheme for the development shall be provided
and approved by the planning authority before installation.

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority for attenuating noise
from the grilles/louvres serving the mechanical plant. The scheme shall have
regard to the principles of BS 4142:2014+A1:2019 and ensure there is no
detrimental impact to the nearest residential dwellings. A test to demonstrate
compliance with the scheme shall be undertaken within one month of the
scheme being implemented. All plant shall be maintained in accordance with
manufacturers guidance and any future plant shall also meet the specified
levels within the approved scheme.

Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved (or such other
date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority), the following components of a scheme to deal with the
risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

(1) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: all previous uses;
potential contaminants associated with those uses; a conceptual model of the
site indicating sources, pathways and receptors; and potentially unacceptable
risks arising from contamination at the site.

(2) A site investigation scheme, based on (1) above to provide information for
a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected,
including those off site.

(3) The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (2) and,
based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full
details of the remediation measures required and how they are to be
undertaken.

(4) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order
to demonstrate that the works set out in (3) are complete and identifying any
requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance
and arrangements for contingency action. Any changes to these components
require the express consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The scheme shall be implemented as approved above and, prior to
commencement of any construction work (or such other date or stage in
development as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority), a
Verification Report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the
approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in
accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site
remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan (a 'long-term
monitoring and maintenance plan') for longer-term monitoring of pollutant
linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified
in the verification plan, and for the reporting of this to the Local Planning
Authority.

Submission of Air Mitigation Assessment.

No part of the development shall be first occupied until the electric vehicle
charging space(s) have been provided in accordance with plans and details to
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To provide sustainable travel options in accordance with current
sustainable transport policies.



11.

12.
13.
14.

Prior to the commencement of the development details showing the proposed
location of one fire hydrant or stored water supply (in accordance with the
West Sussex Fire and Rescue Guidance Notes) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with West
Sussex County Council’'s Fire and Rescue Service and installed prior to the
first occupation of the building.

Approval of Materials.

Landscaping details to be submitted and approved on northern boundary.

No windows...northern elevation...

35



36

4

Application Number: |AWDM/0550/21 Recommendation - APPROVE
Site: Garage Site South Of Heene C Of E Primary School
Norfolk Street, Worthing
Proposal: Demolition of existing storage buildings. Construction
of replacement building comprising 4no.
one-bedroom flats and 2no. two-bedroom flats, bin
and bike storage and associated landscaping.
Applicant: BR7 Ltd Ward: Central
Agent: Mr Huw James ECE Planning Ltd
Case Officer: Jackie Fox
B : o 8 1T
RIE: iEL L | g L TR )
|| i A R * _— | W ==
l | T’HI'__ T ':.-.- \ ' :II' I.|_]|“§__J I'.
| L 11 | L=
| : L= ??rmghc_gglj VY ! I,l. T

Not to Scale

Reproduced from OS Mapping with the permission of HMSO © Crown Copyright Licence number LA100024321



Update

The application came before the Committee on the 25th August. The application
was deferred:

‘to further consider accessibility issues to the site with a view to upgrading the
private track to ensure it is adequate to serve future users including wheelchair
users.’

Since the deferral the applicants through their agents have provided a further
supporting statement, served certificate D and placed an advertisement in the
newspaper and provided a letter of intent to carry out work.

Officers have pursued advice from an appropriate access group.

The applicants and their agents have requested that the matter be brought back to
the September committee.

Supporting Statement.

The full statement is attached below. It sets out that every effort to try and identify
the owner of the access has been pursued and that the land would consist of
private land. They will continue to try and identify the owner. They reiterate that the
access road would only be used by pedestrians and cyclists associated with the
development and would be car free and meets strategic objective 7 of the Core
Strategy. They indicate that there are no planning requirements for wheelchair
accessible housing, particularly on this scale of development. They confirm that the
development would meet with building regulations M4(2) category 1 Vvisitable
dwellings standard . They point out that the access is currently well used by
pedestrians and cyclists and WSCC highways have not raised any objections.
Having taken legal advice they indicate that the owner of the land will ultimately be
responsible for maintaining a safe route along the access road. They indicate that
the applicant has already been carrying out informal maintenance to the existing
access including clearing overgrown bushes. It is stated that to attach a grampian
style planning condition to secure works to the access would not meet the relevant
tests due the ownership of the land.

Certificate of Ownership

An amended certificate of ownership has been received ( Certificate D) to indicate
that the applicant does not own all the land to which the application relates and
does not know the names and addresses of any of the owners. Certificate D
requires the applicant to publish in a local newspaper.

The notice was published in the Worthing Herald on the 9th September. The notice
will not expire until the 30th September. A decision cannot be made until after this
date. The newspaper advertisement may involve further representations.

37



38

Letter of Intent

A letter of intent that indicates that the applicants would be willing to ensure that
remedial repairs required due to the development would be carried out by
applicants and the road surface improved to make access easier for all.

Access Group

Following discussion with the Head of Building Control, it has been established that
there is not currently an access group in existence for Worthing that can look at the
access track and advice from a disabled user.

Conclusion

Members should take on board this additional information and certification and
whether it would provide further clarity and information to determine the application,
taking on board the applicant's ownership rights, the letter of intent and whether the
matter can be pursued further.

Any decision to be deferred to officers following the expiration of the publicity.
Introduction

Councillor Sally Smith has called in the application for consideration by the
Committee.

Site and Surroundings

Norfolk Street Garages comprise a U-shaped group of buildings on a site located to
the east of Norfolk Street, to the west of Clifton Road and north of properties off
Cobden Road. To the north of the site is Heene Primary School.

The site is accessed via a private unmade road which links Norfolk Street and
Clifton Road.

The buildings comprise two storey at either end of the U-shape with flat roof linked
by single storey flat roof buildings. The buildings are partly rendered and partly
boarded. The buildings are characterised by garage doors at ground floor facing
into the site and windows at first floor. There is an external staircase to the side of
the eastern two storey element giving access to part of the first floor.

Units 1, 2, 3, 4, 9 and 14 have historically been used as single lock-up garages.
Units 5 -7 and 13 were used as workshops. Unit 8 as an office and unit 10, 11-12
and 15-16 were used for storage. The first floor units above 1-4 were in use as an
office and store room.

The applicant's agent indicates that the buildings are in a poor state of repair.

The site is within a primarily residential area characterised by terraced housing and
flats. Cobden Road immediately to the south is characterised at its western end by
two and three storey terraced houses on the back edge of the pavement. The



properties to the south comprise terraced houses off Cobden Road, they have
relatively short rear gardens which are enclosed by fence/wall along the boundary
with the access road. Some of the properties have first floor outside space

On its western boundary the existing built form abuts directly with the rear access
and gardens of 1 — 5 Norfolk Street. The existing buildings present a number of
original wall openings at ground floor level on the boundary facing west.

On its northern boundary the site and existing built form abuts directly with a raised
area of the School Campus grounds in the form of retained ground adjacent the site
and next to a lower open activity area for the school.

The existing buildings present a number of original wall openings at ground floor
level on the boundary facing north

On its eastern boundary the site and existing built form abuts directly with a raised
area of the School Campus grounds in the form of ground retained adjacent the site
by a lower-level classroom building towards the northern end of the boundary. A
higher-level electrical substation enclosure and its hardstanding access onto the
service road towards the southern end of the boundary.

Victoria Park lies just to the west with a large open public amenity space and
children’s play facility

Proposal

The application, which has been amended since originally submitted, proposes the
demolition of the existing buildings and the erection of a replacement building
comprising 4 one bedroom flats and 2 two bedroom flats. The one bedroom flats
would be 50sgm and the two bedroom flats 70sgm.

The replacement building uses primarily the existing footprint and proposes a new
building as the existing buildings are in a poor state of repair.

In terms of materials, the proposed building would incorporate a sandfaced yellow
multi coloured stock, sandfaced grey multicoloured stock with dark grey smooth
detail brick.

In terms of the roof and windows, the proposed building would consist of a grey
single ply high performance PVC flat roof membrane and grey aluminium faced
timber composite windows.

The new building would incorporate ventilating rooflights to maximise light and
provide ventilation.

The Applicant has confirmed that they would be happy to offer a full sprinkler
system for each residential unit.

There is no car parking on site. The scheme provides for covered cycle parking in a
separate building in the centre of the site which would be wooden clad with a sedum
roof.

39



40

There would be a central courtyard which all properties would face into enclosed
with railing to the access road.

The bin stores would be located on the southern elevation adjacent to the access
road.

BLOCK PLAN AND INDICATIVE VIEWS ACCOUMODATION SCHEDULE
DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PUBPOSES ONLY 33 appaccas e - 7000

AERIAL VIEW FROM SOUTH

AERIAL VIEW OF EXISTING BUILDING MASSING FROM SOUTH EAST - indcatrve only




Relevant Planning History

NOTICE/0007/19 - Application for permitted development for prior approval for
change of use of storage units 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11 and 12 (B 8 use class) to 2no.
residential units - Prior Approval Required and Granted

NOTICE/0016/20 - Application for Prior Approval of Proposed Change of use of an
Office (Use Class B1a) to form 1no, residential unit (Use Class C3) at first floor level
- Prior Approval Required and Granted.

Consultations
West Sussex County Council:

Access and Visibility

No vehicular access is proposed for the replacement building. Access to the
maintained highway network can be via existing accesses on Norfolk Street or
Clifton Road, both unclassified roads subject to a speed restriction of 30 mph.

From inspection of local mapping, there are no apparent visibility issues with the
existing points of access onto Norfolk Street or Clifton Road.

An inspection of collision data provided to WSCC by Sussex Police from a period of
the last five years reveals no recorded injury accidents attributed to road layout
within the vicinity of the site. Therefore, there is no evidence to suggest the existing
accesses are operating unsafely, or that the proposal would exacerbate an existing
safety concern.

Servicing

The applicant should be aware that safe and suitable access for a fire appliance
may need to be demonstrated in order to meet building regulations. The minimum
width for sufficient access for fire appliances is 3.7m, although this can be reduced
to 2.75m over short distances as long as the 3.7m can be provided within 45m of
the property.

Additionally, Manual for Streets states that waste collection vehicles should be able
to access within 25m of the bin storage point and that residents should not have to
carry bins more than 30m where at all practical, although this is an amenity issue.

Whilst servicing arrangements are not strictly speaking a material planning
consideration, the applicant is encouraged to consider servicing and emergency
access arrangements at the planning stage.

Parking

The applicant proposes a nil car parking provision for this development. The WSCC
Car Parking Demand Calculator indicates that a development of this size in this
location would require at least six car parking spaces. Therefore, vehicular parking
would have to be accommodated on-street.

Whilst on-street parking is limited in the area, there are comprehensive parking
restrictions in place prohibiting vehicles from parking in places that would be a

41



42

detriment to highway safety. The LHA does not anticipate that the proposed nil car
parking provision would result in a severe highway safety concern. However, the
LHA advises the LPA to consider the potential impacts of a small increase in
on-street parking demand from an amenity point of view. Weight is given to the fact
the site is situated in a sustainable location.

The applicant has demonstrated a cycle parking store, with provision for ten cycles.
Cycling is a viable option in the area and the inclusion of secure and covered cycle
storage will help promote the use of sustainable transport methods.

Sustainability

The site is located in a sustainable location within walking/cycle distance of schools,
shops and other amenities and services. The site is also well connected by public
transport. Worthing Train Station is located approximately 600m northeast of the
site. Regular bus connections can be caught from nearby roads also (A259 and
A2031).

Conclusion

The LHA does not consider that this proposal would have an unacceptable impact
on highway safety or result in ‘severe’ cumulative impacts on the operation of the
highway network, therefore is not contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework (paragraph 109), and that there are no transport grounds to resist the
proposal.

If the LPA are minded to approve the application, the following condition should be
applied:

Cycle parking

No part of the development shall be first occupied until covered and secure cycle
parking spaces have been provided in accordance with plans and details to be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To provide alternative travel options to the use of the car in accordance
with current sustainable transport policies.

Adur & Worthing Councils:
The Environmental Health officer
Public Health

| would recommend the precautionary contaminated land condition in case they
have to break ground to lay drainage.

PSH may have something to say about the position of the first floor flat's bedrooms
to the kitchen, with regards to means of escape in the event of a fire.

Private Sector Housing
The Private Sector Housing team of Adur & Worthing Councils have identified that

some aspects of the development may result in hazards that require action under
the Housing Act 2004. Typical hazards can include ‘inner’ rooms (where the only



means of escape in the case of fire is through another risk room i.e. bedroom, living
room,kitchen, etc.) or where there are inadequate windows or outlook from
habitable rooms.

In this case, all the bedrooms in the southern flats are inner rooms. Whilst the
hazard can be mitigated on the ground floor through the use of fire escape
windows, the PSH team do not accept fire escape windows at first floor level as
meeting the Housing Act2004 and the layout does not appear to meet the basic
requirements to allow the use of fire suppression.

Compliance with Building Regulations will not necessarily address the hazards
identified and you should contact the Private Sector Housing team to confirm that
the layout of the property is acceptable prior to commencing the development in
order to avoid the need for any formal intervention or the requirement of
retrospective works

The Waste Services Officer (provided as a response to the agent)

After having seen the proposed plans and assessed the area along with the fact
that each property will be issued their own set of bins this plan is acceptable to the
waste and cleansing department.

Please note: The space allocated to housing/storing the bins may need to be
enlarged slightly so as to fit the required number and size of bins per property.

Each flat will be issued: 1 x 140 litre refuse bin (1054mm H, 480mm W, 560mm D)
& 1 x 240 litre recycling bin (1070mm H, 580mm W, 740mm D) so long as space
allows the size of bins indicated this should be fine.

Also the residents will not be required to present the bins for collection, our crews
will access and service the bins via Norfolk street. This is a change to the previous
instruction. This is due to the limited space located at the entrance to the service
road and would result in either blocking the service road with bins on collection day
or has

the potential to upset existing residents in the location, having many bins out at one
point for collection infront or near their property.

The Drainage Engineer
Original comments:

Flood risk- the proposed site lies within flood zone 1, and is not shown to be at risk
from surface water flooding. We therefore have no objections to the proposals on
flood risk grounds.

Surface water drainage- the application form indicates that it is proposed to
discharge surface water to sewer. Infiltration must first be fully investigated. There
are no surface water sewers in the immediate vicinity of this site, discharge to foul
sewer is not acceptable. Given the relatively dense development proposals we wish
to raise a holding objection. It must be evidenced that there is room for surface
water drainage within the proposed layout. If this information is not provided prior to 43



44

determination it is likely that the layout proposals will unduly bias the design of
surface water drainage and could result in flooding being increased elsewhere.
We therefore wish to raise a holding objection.

Following discussion and submission of further information the following conditions
and informative are suggested.

Development shall not commence, other than works of site survey and
investigation, until full details of the proposed surface water drainage scheme have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
design should follow the hierarchy of preference for different types of surface water
drainage disposal systems as set out in Approved Document H of the Building
Regulations, and the recommendations of the SuDS Manual produced by CIRIA.
Winter groundwater monitoring to establish highest annual ground water levels and
winter infiltration testing to BRE DG365, or similar approved, will be required to
support the design of any Infiltration drainage. No building / No part of the extended
building shall be occupied until the complete surface water drainage system serving
the property has been implemented in accordance with the agreed details and the
details so agreed shall be maintained in good working order in perpetuity.”

“‘Development shall not commence until full details of the maintenance and
management of the surface water drainage system is set out in a site-specific
maintenance manual and submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. The manual is to include details of financial management and
arrangements for the replacement of major components at the end of the
manufacturer's recommended design life. Upon completed construction of the
surface water drainage system, the owner or management company shall strictly
adhere to and implement the recommendations contained within the manual.”

and the accompanying informative:

“Infiltration rates for soakage structures are to be based on percolation tests
undertaken in the winter period and at the location and depth of the proposed
structures. The percolation tests must be carried out in accordance with BRE
DG365, CIRIA R156 or a similar approved method and cater for the 1 in 10 year
storm between the invert of the entry pipe to the soakaway, and the base of the
structure. It must also have provision to ensure that there is capacity in the system
to contain below ground level the 1 in 100 year event plus 40% on stored volumes,
as an allowance for climate change. Adequate freeboard must be provided between
the base of the soakaway structure and the highest recorded annual groundwater
level identified in that location. Any SuDS or soakaway design must include
adequate groundwater monitoring data to determine the highest winter groundwater
table in support of the design. The applicant is advised to discuss the extent of
groundwater monitoring with the Council's Engineers. Further detail regarding our
requirements are available on the following webpage
https.:.//www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/planning/applications/submit-fees-forms. A
surface water drainage checklist is available on this webpage. This clearly sets out
our requirements for avoiding pre-commencement conditions, or to discharge
conditions”



Southern Water:

Southern Water requires a formal application for a connection to the public foul and
surface water sewer to be made by the applicant or developer

Representations

O
%

Cobden Road North Residents (15 signatures)

Loss of the courtyard turning point causing a safety impact on residents and
general public
The private road is not suitable for development off of it

Petition of 35 signatures stating that they object to the development on the
grounds that it will impact detrimentally on an already overburdened parking
and access situation.

Heene Church Of England Primary School

Do not object but raise concerns about pupil safeguarding and potential
disruption during construction to two classrooms and would wish to discuss
this with the developer.

6 Cobden Road

The foundations and construction of the private road was not built for the
weight or traffic existing or proposed.

Inadequate drainage

It is a private road/footpath for residents and service vehicles access only

The development would have no access or parking

The development would cause damage to the access road

Impact to residents during construction.

10 Cobden Road

Poor access to the proposed site, unlit and uneven

The refuse storage is over 40m from the main road contrary to the manual for
street recommendations

overlooking of properties in Cobden Road

Lack of drainage connection

contamination

No access for fire engines

No provision for electric vehicles or charging

Encroachment of the alleyway

Loss of use of the alleyway, the alley is jointly owned by the freeholders on the
north side of Cobden Road. The construction will disrupt residents.

The alley is unsuitable for large vehicles and damage will occur

Contrary to the NPPF para 127

45



46

® 6 © 06 06 06 0 06 6 0 0 0 o 23

[ ] KD
o

12 Cobden Road

The access road is not suitable for heavy vehicles for demolition, construction,
emergency vehicles and household waste vehicles

Impact on services under the track

The development would overlook a school and near neighbours

No address and Cobden Road resident

The road is too narrow and old to take the traffic from the development
Fire hazard

contamination on the site

Create parking problems

20A Cobden Road

Impact on aging water, drainage and soil pipes

Health and safety issues including asbestos, contaminated land and how
emergency vehicles will access the site.

Inadequate parking in the area.

Increased traffic

Loss of privacy

Increased noise

More suitable for commercial premises

24 Cobden Road

overlooking of first floor windows
increased noise on amenity space
Asbestos on site

flooding

contamination

public safety

Loss of the turning circle

poor access

Overdevelopment

No official right of way for the public
Asbestos on the site

The site floods

Overlooking of the school

26 Cobden Road

Inadequate parking

The access not suitable for removal lorries, delivery vans etc

Loss of important garages and storage units important to local residents and
businesses

The private road is not safe or adequate for the development with residential
High level windows will impinge on privacy

Encroachment onto a private road

Increased noise from the ‘U’ shaped building



0.
*o*

Loss of privacy

The private access road is not suitable for safe pedestrian access, cycle use
or wheelchairs

Inadequate refuse collection

Inadequate for emergency vehicles particularly fire engines

Contaminated land

28 Cobden Roa

Inadequate access particularly for large vehicles
private road which would get blocked
Overlooking

overdevelopment

Local infrastructure is insufficient

32 Cobden Road

Damage to boundary wall from vehicles required for the demolition and
construction of the development

The alley is too narrow for large vehicles and fire engines

Potential for fire hazard

Inadequate parking

Noise, dust and inconvenience

Need for small commercial units, that this site could provide

34 Cobden Road

Lack of rainwater drainage

Lack of parking

Lack of easy access and turning for emergency vehicles
Lack of privacy

Damage to heritage walls

Inadequate lighting

Overstretched facilities

38 Cobden Road

The lack of rainwater drainage,

lack of available parking,

Lack of easy access and turning for emergency vehicles and privacy and light
for those properties that would be opposite

sustainable infrastructure would mean that they would be better used for
storage, garages and workshops

57 Cobden Road

Insufficient parking for existing residents
Pressure on parking

47



48

< 4 Norfolk Street

<,

Inadequate parking, particularly with the local schools

Poor access

Inadequate access for emergency vehicles

The access is not suitable for large vehicles

The access is in constant use as a right of access and should not be blocked
No lighting along the access

Loss of light from the first floor extension to 4-5 Norfolk Street

The proposed building is not in keeping

Overdeveloped poor quality housing

4

«  5a Clifton Road

Narrow road, poor access

Potential damage to property on the access road

impact on the safety of residents

Inadequate lighting leading to poor unsafe access for future residents

How will the buildings be demolished and constructed without impact on
residents

° Inadequate parking in the area

Relevant Planning Policies and Guidance

Worthing Core Strategy 2006-2026 (WBC 2011): 3,4, 7, 8, 16, 19
Worthing Local Plan (WBC 2003) (saved policies): RES7, RES9, H18, and TR9
Guide to Residential development SPD

Space Standards SPD

Worthing Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

National Planning Policy Framework (HCLG 2021)

National Planning Policy Guidance

Submission Draft Worthing Local Plan 2020-2036

SP1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development)

SP2 (Climate Change)

SP3 (Healthy Communities)

DM1 (Housing Mix)

DM2 (Density)

DM5 (Quality of the Built Environment)

DM16 (Sustainable Design)

Relevant Legislation

The Committee should consider the planning application in accordance with:
Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that
the application may be granted either unconditionally or subject to relevant

conditions, or refused. Regard shall be given to relevant development plan policies,
any relevant local finance considerations, and other material considerations



Planning Assessment
Policy context

The policy context comprises the NPPF and the local development plan which
consists of the saved policies of the Worthing Local Plan, Worthing Core Strategy
and accompanying SPDs as well as the emerging submission draft Worthing Local
Plan.

Policy CS8 seeks to deliver a wide choice of high quality homes to address the
needs of the community with higher density housing (including homes suitable for
family occupation) in and around the town centre with new development outside of
the town centre predominantly consisting of family housing.

National planning policy contained in the NPPF post-dates the adoption of the Core
Strategy. Paragraph 10/11 identifies at the heart of the NPPF a presumption in
favour of sustainable development. For decision making this means making plans
which positively seek opportunities for objectively assessed housing needs,
approving development proposals that accords with an up-to-date development plan
without delay and where there are no relevant policies or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless policies within the framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the proposal or any adverse
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits
when assessed against the policies of the Framework as a whole.

It is acknowledged that in response to the requirements of the Framework and
informed by local evidence a 5 year supply of housing in relation to Objectively
Assessed Needs (OAN) cannot currently be demonstrated. A housing study has
been undertaken to address this requirement and to inform the forthcoming
Worthing Local Plan.

Within this context the proposed dwellings would make a contribution — albeit very
small — to meeting housing needs in the Borough.

The ‘Guide for Residential Development’ (SPD) indicates that all new development
will be expected to demonstrate good quality architectural and landscape design
and use of materials. In particular, new development should display a good quality
of architectural composition and detailing as well as responding positively to the
important aspects of local character, exploiting all reason opportunities for
enhancement. Where appropriate, innovative and contemporary design solutions
will be encouraged.

The key considerations are the loss of the commercial site, effects on the character
visual amenity of the area, the suitability of the dwellings, residential amenities for
existing and proposed residents, access and car parking

Loss of the commercial site

Policy 4 of the Worthing Core Strategy (WCS) seeks to protect employment
opportunities and seeks to resist the conversion or redevelopment of land currently
in use or last used for employment purpose unless it can be satisfactorily



50

demonstrated that the site, or part of the site, is genuinely redundant and is unlikely
to be re-used for industrial or commercial use within the Plan period.

The applicant's agent has indicated that there is no employment use on the site.
The units are partly vacant, used informally and temporarily as lock-up storage
units. The use of the units helps to ensure that the site is secure from crime and
vandalism. The units are not used as employment or commercial floorspace.

The principle of residential development has already been established and
considered acceptable under NOTICE/0007/19 and NOTICE/0016/20. These
applications established the principle for 3no. residential units across Units 1-4 (on
the ground and first floors) and Units 9-12. The remaining floorspace of
approximately 169.7sgm is currently occupied by Units 5-8, Unit 13 (currently
vacant) and Units 15-16 which are all used as storage units or vacant.

The applicant's agent has indicated that the units are in a poor state of repair and
poor, dilapidated condition and refurbishing or redeveloping the site for employment
use would be greater than the return that could be anticipated (in line with Policy 4
of the WCS). The site in its current state would not be capable of accommodating
an acceptable employment development.

It is agreed that these units are in a poor state of disrepair and have generally only
been used for storage in recent years, the principal has been established for
residential on the site. A more intensive commercial use of the site would be
inappropriate with regards to location, access and residential amenity. Furthermore
the site would provide for much needed housing. It is not therefore considered that
the application could be refused on the loss of an employment site.

Density, character and appearance

The NPPF and policies within the Worthing Core Strategy attach great weight to
sustainable development and that good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development.

The ‘Guide for Residential Development’ (SPD) indicates that all new development
will be expected to demonstrate good quality architectural and landscape design
and use of materials. In particular, new development should display a good quality
of architectural composition and detailing as well as responding positively to the
important aspects of local character, exploiting all reason opportunities for
enhancement. Where appropriate, innovative and contemporary design solutions
will be encouraged.

The design is contemporary and seeks to reflect the former commercial use,
footprint and scale of the existing buildings. The building is utilitarian with parapeted
form with layered facing brick and detail providing a mews development with a
central inward facing courtyard. The site is enclosed by railing to the access road
and a covered cycle store sits centrally at the front. A private communal amenity
space is provided in the courtyard.

The proposal is of a similar shape and form to the existing development and sits
comfortably on the site with a similar relationship to the neighbouring uses.



Although concerns were raised by officers in relation to the cycle store which is
relatively dominant on the frontage this has been amended and the use of materials
and green roof would soften the form.

The existing gross internal area of the building equals 374.9sgm and the proposed
building equals 381.04sgqm. The net additional floorspace to be provided by the
development is therefore 6.14sqm. The provision of 6 dwellings on a net site area
of 0.0536 Ha provides a density of approximately 112 dwellings per hectare
comparable with the density of the existing terraced housing and flats to the east of
the site.

The proposed form and design of the development is considered appropriate for the
location and the density is considered to be appropriate and the proposal would not
be an overdevelopment of the site.

Residential amenity

Core Strategy policies 16 Built Environment and Design and Policy 8 Mix of Homes.
Paragraph 7.13 refers to the adaptability enabled by Lifetime Homes and to the
internal size and layout of homes which are both essential factors to consider if new
homes are to be built to a standard which enables people to have a reasonable
standard of living accommodation.

Future occupant amenity

The proposal involves partly two storey and partly single storey single aspect
development it is therefore very important that the arrangement of development
does not cause detrimental inter-looking between the properties and they have an
acceptable level of privacy, light, safety and space.

The proposal involves one bedroom flats at 50sgm and two bedroom flats at 70sgm.
The size complies with the National Space Standards. The minimum distance
between the front of the properties is approx 11m, which is not dissimilar and
greater than the distance between properties in Cobden Road. The development is
‘U’ shaped with the open aspect to the front south elevation. The development will
provide a degree of natural light for all properties.

The layout indicates that all habitable rooms would have external windows looking
over an amenity space. The Environmental Health officers have raised concerns
that the bedrooms in the southern flats are inner rooms and that for escape
purposes the layout does not appear to meet the requirements to allow the use of
fire suppression particularly at first floor.

The concern of fire services reaching the site has also been raised by a number of
residents in response to the neighbour consultation.

The applicants have taken on board the concerns of Environmental Health Officers
and neighbours and sought independent advice regarding West Sussex Fire and
Rescue Services requirements. WSFRS have indicated that with a full sprinkler
system that units can be a maximum of 90m from an appliance. The applicant's
agent has measured the furthest corner of the site (which is anticipated to be

51



52

ground floor, Unit 4) and this equals approximately 72m when measured from the
kerb of Norfolk Street. This measurement would appear to comply with the guidance
and details would be secured by Building Control. The Applicant have also
confirmed that they would be willing to offer a full sprinkler system for each
residential unit. This could be dealt with by condition.

With regards to open space the Space Standards SPD indicates that a minimum of
20sgm per flat should be provided. This would equate to 120sgm (6no. residential
units x 20sgm). The applicant's agent has confirmed that 125sgm of communal
amenity area would be provided within the central section of the site. The proposal
would therefore be in accordance with The Space Standards SPD.

A number of local residents have raised concerns in relation to the access to the
site along a private, unmade road with no lighting. It is acknowledged that this is
not ideal for future residents however it is a material consideration that the principle
of residential development has been accepted on the site from the conversion of
many of the existing storage units. It is not therefore considered that the application
could be refused on the basis that the access to the site is inappropriate.

Neighbour amenity

The ‘Guide to Residential Development’” SPD also provides guidance on siting and
relationship of proposed development on neighbouring properties.

The proposed development is on a backland site with residential development to the
south and west and a school to the north and partly to the east. The access would
be to the rear and between properties on Cobden Road and Norfolk Street via a
private access way which local residents have indicated is for residents who have
rights over it only, although it is used for passage particularly for pedestrians
between Norfolk Street and Clifton Road. There are properties which have frontage
onto the track although the majority of properties off Cobden Road(north) side have
a rear boundary and gardens facing the access road.

The proposed development would have no vehicle parking on site with future
residents accessing the site on foot or by cycle. It is acknowledged that there will
however also be the need for the proposed properties to be serviced by vehicles for
potential drop off, and deliveries for the flats.

The proposed dwellings are primarily single aspect facing into the site with high
level windows to the southern elevation to four of the flats.

Local residents have raised a number of concerns as highlighted above, these
include additional impact, noise and disturbance from the new development as well
as the use of the access track, overlooking, loss of privacy, contamination, flooding,
encroachment onto the road. Access, turning and parking will be dealt with in the
section below.

The proposed development would introduce 6 flats onto the site however this
should be weighed up against the previous prior approval for residential on this site
as well as any potential impacts from the existing uses on the site.



It is appreciated that the proposal has potential for increased activity for existing
residents through access to the site and the servicing of the properties but as
highlighted above the use for residential has been established, the proposed use
would increase the number of units previously approved from 3 to 6 but this allowed
for the retention of some of the storage and workshop space.

The use of the site also needs to be weighed up against the existing commercial
use of the site, although a low key operation as existing, it has potential for a more
intensive use which could have greater impact on surrounding residential
properties.

It is considered that the current proposal would provide a scheme which improves
the existing environment for existing and future residents with an appropriately
designed building for the site.

In terms of direct impact on residential amenity the proposed development
predominantly faces into the courtyard with the only external facing windows on the
southern side which are high level. It is not considered that the proposal would
cause direct detrimental overlooking taking into account the siting and distance from
neighbouring properties. The proposed building would be on a similar footprint to
the existing development and of a similar height. Although there is a slight increase
in footprint at first floor, this is not considered to have a detrimental impact, loss of
light or visual impact on neighbouring properties in Cobden Road and Norfolk
Terrace or the school to the north. There is no indication that the proposal
encroaches onto the access track and notice No 1 has not been served.

There are some residences which face onto the road and concern has been raised
about safety and the potential damage to the existing wall on the southern boundary
of the access road. As indicated above there would be no significant increase in use
than has previously been permitted, it is not envisaged that the development would
impact further on residents facing the access track or be more likely to cause
damage to walls or other structures along the track.

Concerns raised in relation to contamination and drainage would be dealt with by
condition.

Accessibility and parking

The site would be accessed from the unmade private track which runs between
Norfolk Street and Clifton Road. The development would have no parking on site
and there would be no turning or drop off. The site would have a covered cycle
building.

Local residents have raised concerns about the loss of turning area, the suitability of
the private access track for additional vehicles and particularly large vehicles and
parking.

WSCC highways department has not raised any objection to the proposal, they
indicate that existing accesses are operating safely and the proposal would not
exacerbate an existing safety concern.

53



54

The turning area on the application site exists due to the nature of the existing
development, it is not a formal turning area and its retention could not be insisted on
in connection with the application.

The access track is in a poor condition and this is acknowledged and as indicated
earlier is not ideal to serve the proposed residential development. The applicant is
reluctant to agree to a grampian style condition requiring the track to be upgraded
and relies on the fact that permission has already been granted for the conversion
of the buildings to residential use under permitted developments without any road
improvements. Whilst, the previous prior approval for residential conversion is a
material consideration access was not a relevant consideration under this process.
However, this planning application does require a wider analysis and Members have
expressed concern about the adequacy of the access to meet the needs of all future
occupants (including those less able). In the circumstances and given that the
applicant has not been able to identify the owner, a condition requiring
improvements prior to occupation does seem reasonable in the circumstances.

Unfortunately the Worthing and Access Mobility Group does not currently exist and
therefore it has not been possible to seek guidance. However, national guidance on
inclusive mobility is clear that,

Uneven surfaces, gaps between paving slabs etc whether within or outside
buildings can cause problems for people using sticks and crutches, visually
impaired cane users and wheelchair users. Joints between flags and pavers should
not be less than 2mm and not more than 5mm wide. For pedestrian-only footways,
flags can be laid with wider joints (6-10mm) filled with compacted mortar. Maximum
deviation of the footway surface under a 1 metre straight edge should not exceed
3mm. New cobbled surfaces are unlikely to be appropriate and, even in historic
environments, alternatives should be sought. ek guidance on the acceptability of the
current proposal.

Whilst, Part M of the Building Regulations also talks about level access for the
disabled it often does not apply beyond the development site. However, the general
guidance does say for all approach roads to dwellings should have appropriate
surfacing.

Given the above guidance it is considered reasonable to require an upgrade to the
surface of the existing track.

In terms of parking WSCC have not raised any concerns to the nil parking provision
indicating that they can be accommodated on-street. They acknowledge that
on-street parking is limited in the area but indicate that there are comprehensive
parking restrictions in place prohibiting vehicles from parking in places that would be
a detriment to highway safety. The LHA does not anticipate that the proposed nil car
parking provision would result in a severe highway safety concern.

The applicant has provided a cycle parking store for ten cycles. Cycling is a viable
option in the area and the inclusion of secure and covered cycle storage will help
promote the use of sustainable transport methods.



The site is in a sustainable location within walking distance of buses and the train
station and is within close proximity of the town centre and other local facilities. It is
not therefore considered that the application could be refused on lack of parking on
site.

Sustainability

Policy 17 is concerned about Sustainable Construction and states that ‘all new
development will contribute to making Worthing a more sustainable place to live and
work by reducing its contribution to carbon emissions and ensuring that the town is
resilient to the local impacts of climate change’.

In terms of residential development, Policy 17 goes on to state that “All new
residential development must achieve as a minimum the national/regional/local
targets and standards for sustainable construction with a particular emphasis on
water efficiency.”

The applicant has indicated that sustainability has been fully considered in the
preparation of the proposals.

Included in the proposal:

° Modern Methods of Construction

° Efficient low carbon energy sources

Insulation and air changes designed to ensure space heating load will be
reduced.

A high level of air tightness

Good natural lighting

Low energy lighting more than building regulation requirements

Appliances rated A or A+ for energy and water consumption

The use of water efficient goods and fittings such as aerated taps and low flow
showers.

However, the applicant has not provided any guidance on the use of renewable
energy (a requirement of Part L of the Building Regulations from June next year)
and additional information has been sought on the scope for green roofs to enhance
biodiversity.

Recommendation
APPROVE

Subject to the expiry of the delegation period relating to the ownership
certificate and subject to the following conditions :-

Approved Plans

Full permission

Submission of details of materials of the building, external areas and gates
cycle building provided

Construction method statement

Hours of construction work

Ok wh =

55



56

Sprinkler system to be provided in accordance with standards

Surface water drainage details submitted

Maintenance of surface water drainage system

Submission of details of risks from contaminates on site

Refuse and waste facilities provided in accordance with the plans

Details of the landscaping of the communal amenity area and the green roof
on the cycle store including maintenance.

Details of measures of sustainability including use of renewable energy

Prior to occupation of the dwellings hereby approved the access track serving
the development shall be improved in accordance with details first submitted
to and approved in writing with the LPA.



ECE Planning

Mr James Appleton

APPENDIX |

Brooklyn Chambers 76 Great Suffolk Beacon T
11 Goring Road Slresat

Woathing, W Sussex Londan

BN1Z 4AF SE1 0BL

T 01803 246 777 T 0207 926 2773

Development Managenmenit
Waorthing Borough Council

Portland House

44 Richmond Read
Warthing

West Sussex
BN11 1HS

08 September 2021
Ref: RH/Let/P1684

Managing Director

Chris Barker MATP MRTFI
Directors

Huw James MRTFI

Adarn King RIBA

Adarn Sianiforth FCCA

ECE Flannimg Lirnited
Registered in England
Mo TE44833

VAT No 122 2391 54
Registered Offica:
Ameka House

Crescent Road, Worhing
BN11 1QR

Dear Mr Appleton,

Garage Site South of Heene C of E Primary School, Norfolk Street, Worthing.
Application Reference AWDM/0550/21.

We are contacting you on behalf of the Applicant, BRT Ltd, with regards to the application
at Norfolk Street which was heard at Planning Commities on Wednesday 25 August 2021.

As you will be aware, the application was subject to significant debate by Committes
Members and was subsequently defermed for the following reason, as set out within the
Planning Commitiee minutes:

‘Application DEFERRED to further consider accessibility issues to the site with
a view to upgrading the private track to ensure it is adequate fo serve future
users including wheelchair users.”

We have prepared this letter, ahead of the deadline of Thursday 9 September 2021, to
allow the: application to be heard at the next Planning Committea meeting on 22 September
2021. Please see below our response to the reason for deferral which has been separated
into relevant headlines.

Ownership of Access Road

We wish to reassure Members that every effort has been made to try and identify the
Owner of the access lane, prior to submisslon of the application. Unfortunately, we,
including the Applicant and their Solicitors, have been unsuccessful in trying to find the
Owners of the lane.

A search of West Sussex Highway's maps was undertaken prior to submission which
revealed that the lane is neither adopted or non-adopted and would therefore appear to
consist of private land. Refer to Figure 1 for information.

T 0117 214 111

57



58

ECE Planning

Map features
OwEr2y acomional gengraphical teanes
oAl area

L Anad Names

— Adopted

8 O west sumsex comty
vage 3

oa b LA LU TT BT T st
Figure 1 - West Sussex County Council Acl-::pt_eu:l Roads Map . . .
In this regard, a review of Land Registry had been undertaken prior to submission which

revealed that the lane did not have a Title Plan or Register covering the whole extent of
the lane. Refer to Figure 2 for information.

Figure 2 - Land Registry (Source: Nimbus Maps, 2021)

It was noted that a sub-station is located to the east of the site and is owned by UK Power
MNetworks who clearly need to use the lane to access the sub-station. The Applicants
contacted UK Power Network who advised that they also do not ewn the lane and only
owned the [and highlighted in green as illustrated in Figure 3.

=l

Figure 3 - UK Power Metwork Land Dwnershi;




ECE Planning

The application has therefore been advertised in the Worthing Herald newspaper and
www worthingtoday co.uk.

The Applicant and Solicitor have been continuing to find out who the landowner of the
private lane is and will continue to do so post determination.

Access as a Material Consideration

It is important to note that for the purposes of this planning application, the access road
would only be used by pedestrians/cyclists agsociated with the development and would
not be used by cars as the scheme s car free and does not seek to accommodate any car
parking.

The concems of Members are understood but it must be recognised that this car free
development meets most of the Core Strategy Strategic Objective 7 key outcomes in that
it reduces the proportion of car journeys and increases the proportion of journmeys by more
sustainable modes; locates new homes in a sustainable location, providing opportunities
for pedestrians and cyclists and helps to improve local air quality. It is also cleary
establizhed that the site is almost derelict and that alternative uses such as light industrial
are inappropriate in this location with no vehicular access and close to many other homes,
and as such the proposals are inherently sustainable, making the most efficient use of
land.

Strictly speaking, there are no planning policy requirements for wheelchair accessible
housing, particularly on redevelopments of this scale. The development is however
designed o building regulations M4(2) category 1 visitable dwellings standard which will
deliver a safe and accessible envircnment within the units and exterior spaces. The units
are not designed to wheelchair standards (such as M4(2) accessible and adaptable
dwellings or M4(3) wheelchair user) as the practicalities are that there is no parking with
this development which is less suitable for and elderly or less ambulant persons. Adaptable
or wheelchair user standards would also have much greater internal (and conversely
extemnal) space and layout needs which again, are not considered appropriate for a tightly
consirained, high density and bespoke development. The scheme responds to the
consiraints of the site and surroundings and may be more appropriate for more ambulant
users but as mentioned, due to its location residents would be required to walkicycle to
and from the site rather than be reliant on a car.

The applicants have sought advice from their architect, transport consultant and solicitor
in order to consider the access needs of all, including those less ambulant or elderty but
currently face some constraints in making significant surface improvements to the track. It
should be noted that WSCC Highways have also not raised any concems. The access
road is currently well used by pedestrians and cyclists who move to and from the site on a
reqular basis as shown by the photograph below taken at 9.20am on Tuesday 31 August.

59



60

ECE Planning

Figure 4 - Photograph of Existing Lane
Motwithstanding the above and as previously set out within this letter, the Applicant is

willing to upgrade the access lane where possible and hasfis actively seeking confirmation
as to the private owner of the lane.

Having taken legal advice on the matter it is relevant that the owner of the land will be
ultimately responsible for maintaining a safe route, one that could be used by people with
mobility needs, @nsuring that the access is Disability Discrimination Act complaint although
this ks not strictly a planning matter.



ECE Planning

Informal Maintenance of the Existing Access

It is important to highlight that the Applicant has already been carrying out informal
maintenance to the existing access including regular clearing of the overgrowth of bushes
and trees to protect the continued access. The Applicant will continue to do this in
managing the property and is local to the site. The Applicant is keen to deliver a high quality
development and will be speaking at Planning Committee to emphasis their commitment
to the scheme.

Conclusion

To conclude it would not be considered appropriate for the application to be refused on
grounds of access when an existing access is already achieved to and from the site, and
is regularly used by pedestrians, cycles and vehicles, as set out within this letter. The
Applicant has and is actively seeking confirmation as to who the owner is of the access
lane and will continue to do so in order to improve the access lane, if possible. To attach
a Grampian style planning condition would not meet the relevant tests due to the cwnership
iszue. We would therefore respectfully request that an Informative is attached to a decision
notice to allow these conversations to continue to take place. The Applicant would have
otherwise accepted a condition but as explained to Members during the last meeting, this
would not be achievable or enforceable.

It has been demonstrated that the Applicant has a clear desire to maintain the access
where achievable and will continue to do so through regular maintenance.

There is an additional matter of design that the applicants wish to address as there were
some concems raised by Members on this issue also. We must emphasise that alternative
layouts were presented to the Planning Authority through pre-application discussions but
were dismissed with Officers heavily favouring the current arrangement. The design s in
form and scale very similar to the current buildings and through the courtyard design can
respond to the site’s constraints, particularly amenity and overlooking. The Applicant has
also agreed to design amendments where requested by Planning Officers to create a
building of the highest quality. The Applicant was therefore understandably concemed to
hear the conflict on design matters between Members and Officers when a significant
amount of work has been undertaken to result in the cumrent designs which have been
steered by Worthing's Planning Officers.

If you have any further queries or require further information please contact me on 01903
2487TT.

Yours sincerely
ECE Planning

Huw James METPI
Director

22 September 2021

61



62

Local Government Act 1972
Background Papers:

As referred to in individual application reports
Contact Officers:

Gary Peck
Planning Services Manager (Development Management)
Portland House
01903 221406
ary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk

Stephen Cantwell

Principal Planning Officer (Major Development)
Portland House

01903 221274
stephen.cantwell@adur-worthing.gov.uk

Rebekah Hinke

Senior Planning Officer

Portland House

01903 221313
rebekah.hinke@adur-worthing.gov.uk

Jackie Fox

Senior Planning Officer

Portland House

01903 221312
jacqueline.fox@adur-worthing.gov.uk


mailto:gary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:gary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:gary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:stephen.cantwell@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:rebekah.hinke@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:jacqueline.fox@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Schedule of other matters

Council Priority

1.1 As referred to in individual application reports, the priorities being:-

- to protect front line services

- to promote a clean, green and sustainable environment

- to support and improve the local economy

- to work in partnerships to promote health and wellbeing in our communities
- to ensure value for money and low Council Tax

Specific Action Plans

2.1 As referred to in individual application reports.

Sustainability Issues

3.1 As referred to in individual application reports.

Equality Issues

4.1 As referred to in individual application reports.

Community Safety Issues (Section 17)

5.1 As referred to in individual application reports.

Human Rights Issues

6.1  Atrticle 8 of the European Convention safeguards respect for family life
and home, whilst Article 1 of the First Protocol concerns non-interference
with peaceful enjoyment of private property. Both rights are not absolute and
interference may be permitted if the need to do so is proportionate, having
regard to public interests. The interests of those affected by proposed
developments and the relevant considerations which may justify interference
with human rights have been considered in the planning assessments
contained in individual application reports.

Reputation

7.1 Decisions are required to be made in accordance with the Town &
Country Planning Act 1990 and associated legislation and subordinate
legislation taking into account Government policy and guidance (and see 6.1
above and 14.1 below).

Consultations

8.1 As referred to in individual application reports, comprising both
statutory and non-statutory consultees.

63



64

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

Risk Assessment

9.1 As referred to in individual application reports.
Health & Safety Issues

10.1 As referred to in individual application reports.
Procurement Strategy

11.1  Matter considered and no issues identified.
Partnership Working

12.1 Matter considered and no issues identified.
Legal

13.1 Powers and duties contained in the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended) and associated legislation and statutory instruments.

Financial implications

14.1 Decisions made (or conditions imposed) which cannot be
substantiated or which are otherwise unreasonable having regard to valid
planning considerations can result in an award of costs against the Council if
the applicant is aggrieved and lodges an appeal. Decisions made which fail
to take into account relevant planning considerations or which are partly
based on irrelevant considerations can be subject to judicial review in the
High Court with resultant costs implications.



ltem 1 - AWDM/1240/21

Buckingham Road Car Park, Worthing

Installation of a new facade system and clearer
signage to the car park building. Architectural
cladding to significantly improve the car park's
edge protection and fall prevention barrier.
Enhancements to the existing street level public
realm beneath the car park overhang, by refreshing
the decoration, lighting and flooring

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




:

!

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Buckingham Road - entrance

el
ﬂ’—-ﬁ Bq:.kmgh:xn: Roud H

iEEE

(n) WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Montague Street

millets.co.uk

I———— ==
THE BODY SHOP i :

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Graham Road - Exit

o VWVURITHING BORODUGH
COUNCIL

WB




Graham Road - rear

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Chandos Road

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Chandos Road

*

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PHEEEEY T

|

. —
t & \'Nest'EIev

1

|
|
S

=

i
B
|

Isting Ea

1
1
|

Ex

= __;I-_T_!‘_
' |

f=q-d

Existing Eastern Elevation
0 |

I———i———
|
|

FR R T
|
|

Existing Western Elebation

1:100




il
- — = — — 4 — — —— — — — —— — 4 — —— 4+ —— —

Proposed Eastern Elevation

1:100

_______1___1T___||f

e e e P P

____.|___

il
]

i

_I.__

e e e e
= —

]
=

e
e e

N .. . == | =

=
1

AL

Ty

]|
ey
I

i
—

e

=

Proposed Western Elevation

o




-

e T |

-

il

=i

30
‘___'_—‘I_'—'-I—'_'_'

¥ .

- ‘

H
il
i
"
_.,.
_f

"

20
T

—_— = —
=) = T r x .1— s

e 1_1 —

-
=1
A AT T

T R ee—

s

nse
.I.__ I e L

P || (| S Sy S U
I

e

=

gL

s

naTe

A Y R, 1.2

==

Mom
L L J

=

;;_'_'!__

i

T

!
!
|

!

I
— e e e e e e e . —

[—

__!_:
T e e

e By el — [ R R R O e e e |

=

nie

Existing Northern Elevation

1:100

Existing North & South Elevations

BOROUGH

[ Existing Southern Elevation

COUNCIL




| |
N Im aalll n ulu \.

For amended
‘P’ Sign
see later slide

roposed Northern Elevation
2100

Proposed North & South EIevatl@s

I T ||| BRENIRIEIE
- IlIIIIIIlllI T

= e
| ——— i

(I o e
e I p—— —— g

Illllllllllll {IRISARID (1R
S— IIIIIIIIIIIII ACICTTWTT

==

;HH |IIIIIII|H|[II|

BOROUGH




Amended ‘P’ Sign

(P to be backlit)




Original Plan

Proposed view from Buckingham Road (View 3)

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Amended Plan

7
—1

4. . m ! ,

(n) WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Colour Options 1, 2 and Original

Buckingham Road Multi-Storey Car Park

Option 1 - softer colour shades

Option 2 - contextual colour shades

Original colour shades

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Buckingham Road Multi-Storey Car Park

Colour Options with image of Option 1

Option 1 - softer colour shades

Monobthuc soffit finagh, which could
be either closed gap soffit cladding
(mage below), or soffic board knng
Proposed ighting for this option
i point/spot ghtng, with feature
Ighting in front of the entrances to

emphassse it

|
I‘['

Option 2 - contextual colour shades




ltem 2 - 6 Windsor Road

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




COUNCIL




WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




‘m ~ l"r 4 :/

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




ltem 3 — AWDM/0655/21

* Unit 1A lvy Arch Road

CCCCCCC




Mg,»ox-gary.peckt X ‘ E Adur & Worthing € X ‘ @ StatMap Earthlight X ‘ E Adur & WorthingC X = @ IvyArchRd-Gooo X @ (Public Pack)Agend X ‘ -+

C @ https;//www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Ivy+Arch+Rd, +Worthing/@50.8186286,-0.3675149,127a,35y,45t/data=13m1!1e3/4m5!3m4!1s0.. (& ¥
Y= % P e "- W b r - ’iir (.‘;‘ ; T TRET --'5 o -

B\

@ Attractions

BN{ZYART STUBIOS}

Lt

/

c a \‘&@Lgi PO e

. %‘,ﬁlj}l 2| Imagery ©2021 Google, Imagery ©2021 Bluesky, Getmapping ple, Infoterra Ltd & Bluesky, Maxar Technologies, Map data ©2021

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




cavmewmnce CAD FILE REFERENCE

PROPOSED ANCILLARY UNIT
READY STEADY STORE

DEPOT
KING EDWARD AVENUE

WORTHING

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

15175/2-102

BRAVO SERVICES LTD

PLARNING

1:500

oawase A3

23t sobrw
Wokafieks, WFI
. 0734 W10

Caven: 771
Mohouss, 77 Octe Sheet,
+ 0141 Zmesss

LR

Londor Aood, rARTUCRCL IF
2G1 Y
Lo

02/12/2020 I--~

PAW Ih—{ ROD

o

AReHiTRCTS
e

10 Goes Court,
e

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Bevation A (West)

Bevation C (East]

Ao e wmace CAD FILE REFERENCE

erticaly ioid, with polyester
powder coat i cokour: AL 240 80 05 Abotvcas.

Engheereg bickwork: colour: Red/Brown.

Presied oheriien foctse bond wih  polyesler
powder coal M colour: RAL 7016 Anfwocile Grey.

Alurrinkim fosdo with polyester powder coal Srisk
colour: RAL 7015 Anfwacile Grey.

wity
and aluminkie Ioming with polyester powder coat
Tk colour: PAL 7016 Anivocile Grey.

Steel fre eudl chor with polyester powder coat finki
colour: RAL 7015 Anftwacile Grey.

2uit “Yapescidal
shee! culer karer and polyester powder coot finkix
colour: THC.

Bevation D (North)

g foclprint and soof fam
pe—"—
North ehwecsfion menced.

Cemnan

PROPOSED ANCILLARY UNIT
READY STEADY STORE

SIDFOOD DEPOT
KING EDWARD AVENUE
WORTHNG

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

15175/2-106

BRAVO SERVICES LTD

PLANNING

1:200 (owgsm A3

02/12/2020 |--~ PAW Ia—+ ROD

o
o
| ]

»
o

o

23 Jobru
Wokafieiz, WTT
1. 0924 W10

Caven' 77 Dicke Swet,
ot
1. 0141 20e55

"M?Wm"‘
+ oonm 3
Loncion Road,
oG1
by
WGesCart B Ouicphaniocs,  ARCHITECTS
e

Ve

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




STORAGE LAYOUT
(SHOWN INDICATIVE)

LOADING
AREA & TROLLEY STORAGE

CANOPY OVER

s

2z

PROPOSED ANCILLARY UNIT oy wa| PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
READY STEADY STORE

SIDFOOD DEPOT R ]5]75/2-]03

KING EDWARD AVENUE
WORTHING

23 Jobrw
Wokafeic, WFT

BRAVO SERVICES LTD

PLANNING

1:100 [Cowgim A3

cxommmmsa CAD FLE REFERENCE N2 |--~ AW lo—-‘ R0D

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




STORAGE LAYOUT
{SHOWN INDICATIVE)

W

ROD
oD

PROPOSED ANCILLARY UNIT PROPOSED FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR PLAN
READY STEADY STORE

801000 0r 15175/2-104 _|-c

KING EDWARD AVENUE
WORTHING omiars

BRAVO SERVICES LTD

PLANNING

1:100 [owgie A3

cavmewmmce  CAD FILE REFERENCE

uznml-m PAW |a—n{ ROD

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




Chengs n grounct it endt
mcond floon, seciors and
wvelion.

Buding ookl and ool form
armnced

Do

OPOSED ROOF PLAN

15175/2-105 |~

BRAVO SERVICES LID

PLANNING

1100 ey e A3

02/12/2020 [—-N PAW }h—l{ ROD

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL

ARCHITEETS

o mewmene  CAD FILE REFERENCE




Ao e wmace CAD FILE REFERENCE

SIDFOOD DEPOT
WORTHNG

PROPOSED ANCILLARY UNIT
READY STEADY STORE

KING EDWARD AVENUE

PROPOSED SITE SECTION B-8

15175/2-108

BRAVO SERVICES LTD

PLANNING

1250

oowgme A3

02/12/2020 |--~

PAW Ia_.l ROD

O S o

B

Landor Rood,
b=

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




o2

e
240321

PROPOSED ANCILLARY UNIT PROPOSED SITE SECTION A-A
READY STEADY STORE

8IDFO0D DEPOT 15175/2-107

KING EDWARD AVENUE
WORTHNG

BRAVO SERVICES LTD

PLANNING

1:250 e i

cacmmmaa F\15000'5\1 5175_2 RSS, King Edward Avenue, Warihing_exdension\17.0 Drawings & kue Sheets\ 100 Series-Planning ki tiad |""’ L | -

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




cocas2 "
flocn, sctions ond

LHE- L)
pr—

2402 D
oo [owan|

PROPOSED ANCILLARY UNIT OPOSED SITE SECTION C-C
READY STEADY STORE

BIDFOCD DEPOT =oee| ] 51 75/2—]09 I"|C
KING EDWARD AVENUE pTYT—

+. 01924 P80

G Worsbicue 7 Dcte et
+. o641 23mms

BRAVO SERVICES LID

et

The O »
PLANNING o I bl

o
[}

1250 owgiae A3 o p
o

ARCHITECTS
B

12020 w | "
oo mevmiwarce S\ S000'S\15175_2 RSS, King Edward Avenue, Worthing_exiension\ 17.0 Draowings & kssue Sheets\ 100 Series-Planning 2 I-‘. A I o,

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




This page is intentionally left blank



ltem 1 — AWDM/0550/21

e Garage site south of Heene Primary School,
Norfolk Street, Worthing

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




MNe=Mbox - gary.peck@adur-worthin X ‘ E Adur & Worthing Councils - Cale X
o

GN

i VictorialPark

andiplayground ;

|y !

i 4 4 . &
J
VictorialPark ; r

O heene school - Google Maps

-‘,‘ HeenelCjof|E.__¥8
£ Primary,School *

P

Marys(Cat&0o
Brimany Qahaall

apbing plc, Infoterra'Ltd & Bluesky, Maxar Techi

+

C @ https//www.google.com/maps/search/heene+school/@50.8141539,-0.3795249,128a,35y,45t/data=!3m1!1e3

ol W Bk, b
nologies, Map data 2021  United Kingdom Terms

&

R\ Lt
T Ry A
h=sTihe Rich~~4(Ce

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL







WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




NOTES
DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION

LOCATION PLAN
PURPOSES ONLY

QTE AREA EXILLDING THROUGH ACLESS FROMNORFOLK STREET T0 LFTONRDAD D.0S34 HA (536 S0M|

© Crown copyrigh! 2020 Oranance Survey 100053143
Cadastral data Is subject to Crown copyright and is reproduced win pamission of HM Land Reglstry.

SITE LOCATION 1:1250

OP@SOGDF aesigns

architecture worthing

Lokt 0845 O0e 2223
S = WE. M CrESCEent - desSIgnS.COUK

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE - WORTHING
crescent degigng [sussex) Ltd - registered in england na: 2229957
registered office: bishopstone 3b crescent road workhing west sussax BN11 1RL

cllent  BR? LIMITED date  FEB 2021 scale 11250

project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg ne 19014-PLLOC status PLAI ING APPLICATION DRAWING 95.03.2|

YR B A 101 SCALCH T THECTSG D TECSE O FLYWON (2ALIATIR -THE CUTH.TI R UK AL OPERTATS W 1T 5 THE PTDALTES REAPOMSULTY TOEFRAL Y FAL WEV A9 LANTUL  KMPLLYRZ W) HE LI FEGHLATIAS - X FTOTSTIRY § BEC] 10 ECTHLLY GAVTT ST 4 ERARETENTE 86 LKL HTHFITY LI LI FEGANTRA TS U R DU I
R OV SUTEY DATAX) (EFAW I 45 T ALLFIGHS FESER (D -THE (LETT MHDUFE LIBED B HE (ASTHSCTIN S, LG N1 IESAA1EOG SLLL PO 4G SO IS MALTIME RRCEE SR LALPE IITATo . E53 4 PO EC LD s 18 A BT LS LXE TR AT B URELAL KL ) Lot - DE 0K GMTUAYB PE 100D T B BE T A PERGS Ao

WD HEPUITY WALLETEACY AREWST HEESIED UTTL APRMMATE ARTY L KRS B SHAVE FEE) LD - THE v LIS EDHMEPAITD PG LPHKATIR PSS Y

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




BLOCK PLAN AND INDICATIVE VIEWS D TION ACHEDULE

4X 1 BEDROOM APARTMENTS - 50 SQM
DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PUBPOSES ONLY 2 X 2 BEDROOM APARTMENTS - 70 SQM

survey mfonnaum not avmlable -Qne:nf schoolgrounds NIL CAR PARKING PROVIDED

BIN STORAGE fronting lane
BIKE STORAGE In cenfral location

NOTES
~ = RESTRICTED WIDTH ACCESS proposas subject fo use
ng service road access for and requirements of 18
services

DOMESTIC SPRINKLER / MISTING SYSTEMS fo be
considered as part of fire safety and profection

L~ measures for the scheme subject fo requirements of fre
authartty ard buliding controi

3 restricted access for ceivery of
malerials and piant o sife and the
o a::sm;mumr\es = AERIAL VIEW FROM SOUTH

OP@G\OE?HC O@ IQ‘DS

AERIAL VIEW OF PROPOSED BUILDING MASSING FROM SOUTH EAST - indicative only SITE PLAN 1:500 SPENITEELENE | WORGhENS
COK: G84E OOS 2323

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES - WORTHING i Py £ ¢ e OIS OBNE- IESIONS. 0.k
BR7 LIMITED date:  JAN 2021 scale: NTS and 1: 500@A3| DSV VA0 - FNCK CHTAYIO A T8 A MTME S ® crescent designs (sussaqm | regslereuhe’glmd no: 2229957
pm;ect NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drg no: 10014-PL210REVB  status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING REVISED 30.06.21 registered office - bisnopstone, 36, crescent roag, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL
B R e R S
sty e e

ey
'CEBIGAERS RIEX ASGESEMENT RECISTER AMD ANAING NOTES FOR ASSISTANCE |
FUANNING APPLICATION PLRROSES GMLY

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PROROSED SITE PLAN

LOWER SCHOOL PLAY AREA

/— line of existing

RETAINED AREA OF SCHOGL SITE SEE SECTIoNS /

RESR ACCESS I-§ NORFOLK STREET )

EXISTING SERVICE ROAD

PR 2 SO

MIENTY.
T MATOED ARER

HKE STORE
SEOUN REF

HIGHER RETAIHED AREA OF S(HOXL SITE

WDIMENT
ELECSUB STATIN

N YL/

N

0 neters 5 N

NORFOLK STRIlEI' GARALBES SITE

client  BR? LIMITED date  FEB 2021
project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19016-PL215 REVR
1817500 4 TOR LI AT AP BT  JE U UGG LT TR 61 DEC AL MBS WAIE 15 TIETTES ety

TE
DATLKIHEA CGMESHT ALL NG PESER D D PSR BY THE [RETRICTIMDE KA L  LLWEE RIS SULL LA
lﬂl THE PLITY WALLEX KT AJE W01 MMEEMTEN INTL. Mnmmmwxmm TR AN

15 5008 /5 MAITIALE | CAFETENT IPMOME CESIET |
LS DR MEMLED FOR PLIVMIE AMLEATIN MAMOEY o0LY

scale 1200 N? A3
shatus PLANNING APPLICATION BRAWING REYISED 30.06.21

TOEWUE TLT AL WIS ALELINRALE B ENPLAME YT THE HILIG FEGLATRAS -
MR £ CTICTOR - IEFER 1 THE VT WAL RESSTEN D

NOTES

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY

PLANS BASED ON HB SURVEYS DRAWNG 1513-01 AND (2 DATED 6922020
INITIAL SAFETY MATTERS IDENTIFIED

ACCESS TO THE QTEIS Y14 & NARAOW SERVICE ROAL ALSQ SERVING THE SURRXLHLING PROPERTES
- DELNERIES OF CONSTRUCTION HATERLSLS AND PLANT ETC TO QTE 'WILL REQURE A LETAILED 9TE

MANAGEMENT PLAN T0 BE AGFEED AND MPLEFENTEL FOR SAFE WORKING,

THE PROPOSALS INCLUDE CONSTRIKTIN O THE SITE EQWNDIGRES, THAT VARY IN LEVEL, REPLAONG
THE LINE OF EXISTING WALLS AND REQUIRNG ATTENTKN WITH RESPECT DF THE PARTY WALL ETC
ALT AND 15 IENTFED &S & SAFETY HANAGEMENT ISSUE REQURING AGREEMENTS WITH THE
SNRFOLNLONG LAND DWNERS / SERVKE AUTHORTES WITH RESPECT OF CORSTRUCTING THE WORKS.
AHD SAFE WORHING FOR ACCESS TG AND FOR THE ERELTION OF SCAFFOLDETC ON ADJACENT LANG:
INCLUDBS WoRs{IN PROVIMITY To THE ELECTRIC SLB STATION,

THE PROPOSALS ARE SKBUECT T3 A LETAILED RKK ASSESSENT FOR THE SITE T6 BE PRODUCED
INCLUDING THE CETAILED LSCATION < EXISTING SERVIES

AMENITY SPACE
THE HATCHED ARER, ON THE PLAN IDENTIRES AK EXTERKAL (ENTRAL ARES,

REV B 3000521 BKE SHELTER REVISED AND REPOSTRAED ANENTY AREA ADJUSTED
4 AR - BINS MKES AND FRONTAGE REVISED

crescent designs

architecture worthing

Letet 0845 00e 2223
S WE. M CreSCent - geSIonS.COWUK

crescent designg [sussex) Ltd - registered in england na: 2229957

registered office: bishopstone 3b crescent road workhing west sussex BN11 1RL

- DRI FEOTY.TH 1§ ANECT 194 DETALED RN IF WTE & IERVRETENTE IFLICKL A ITHIRTY PN INLIIG PEGULATR G HRW! D IAFTHENTE ~LL 06 IR Y I REPFORER IR RERE
IS KITES FIN JSSS1KE W BETTIRATINGE URACAI L 0% SETTFLAT SARETY 3995 - THE (LEXT COKTLACK M5 ADTEED ) BISIDS THAT MY MIESID YOS MEOUDAE LLTIA

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




NOTES

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY

FLANS BASED X HB SURVEYS DRANING 1513-01AXD 0 DATED (6422020

FLOUR AREAS WHERE HOTED ARE GROS NTERKAL AND AFPROENATE ONLY
SUH oF GRass IKTERHAL AREAS NOTED FoRt SEPERATE UNITS GRoUND FLODR N WE = 2672 S0M APPROX

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING EXTANT PRIOR APPROVALS FOR CHANGE OF
USE TO RESIDENTIAL (USE CLASS C3)

UNITS |-4 GROUKD AND RRST FLOOKS AND UNITS 9-12 BERERT FRROM PERMTTEL FRIOR WPPACVAL
APPUCATIONS FOR CHANGE ¢F USE TORESLENTIAL UNITS 0JSE [LASS G| REF: NOME-IM-19
PERMTTED 3 WhE 21N AN REFHOTCE-00%/21 PERNITTED 112020

NS 15-%

FALY I

B
1 REY A& 220311 - UNIT NRTES UPDATED
L g

T SresSeent, designs

architecture worthing

Lele 0845 00e 2228

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE M2 WE. M CrESCent - CesSIonS.CO.UK

client  BR7 LIMITED date FEB 2021 scule 1100 QA3 crescent designg [sussex) Ld - registered in england na; 2229957

project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19014-PL200 REVA status PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING 23.03.21 registered affice: bishopstone 3 crescent raad warthing west sussex BN11 1RL

81700 4510 K K ASATE SRR BIET 8 VEUE LN AL -TH CRTMCTI G841 0EC LSBT WIT. 161 BRI (£ ST IO UL L VIS AELIUEA2 8 P TH 1€ LI GRS AW IRATATIG BT 10 ETAE) Y T ERACTENT I LIOL AT LW LKA TR 08 KGNS 1S WO IVERALEH DS UTRE
QDB IHE TABTEIIMDESKUL N LUWETESE IESALAIYAS SILL LA (5 50046 MALTI:ALE  COFEENT IFHOME DESKIED £ MK £ COTISCTER - IETER 1A THE MV WAL PEGBTED A0 ISANK ITES FIR JSSSUKE W EETTICATIN G URSLIL O SETFLAXT SAETY LASP05 - THE LEDT £ CTLIIR ME AOEED 0 BISLDE THAT MY MINSID WS HOADAE AITEA

VR VEPLTT L EX K] KW FAEELAT B ST, Py L DO S AEAFALLE TS WSAE XS EUPEPLED 9 1S APRLATA FOTOES L5

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN NOTES

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY

PLANS BASED <N HR SURVEYS DRAWING BN-01AND (2 DATED ORE2021

FLOGR AREAS WHERE NOTED A€ GROSS NTERNAL AND APPROKINATE (LY
SN OF GROSS INTERNAL ARERS NOTED FAR SEPERATE UNTS RRST RLODR =117.7 SOM APPROX

EXISTING EXTANT PRIOR APPROVALS FOR CHANGE OF
USE TO RESIDENTIAL (USE CLASS C3)
(NS 1-4 GROVND AN FRST FLORS AKD UNTS 3-12 BENERT FROM FERMTTEL PRIOR APPROVAL

APPLKATIONS FOR CHANGE OF USE TQ RESIENTIAL UNITS (LSE DLASS | REF:NOTILE-MD-19
PERMITIED 3 ARE 207 AND REF4RTCE-L0%/21 PERNITTED 2.12020

REV A 231221 - AT HOTES UPDATED

5 neters OP@SO@HE 068|gn8

architecture worthing

Lot 0845 Coa 2223

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE S = WE. M CPESCENG - CESIONS.COUK

client  BR? LIMITED date  FEB 2021 scale 1900 ,? A3 crescent designg [sussex) I - registered in england na: 2229957

project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19014-PL2I1REVA  skatus PLANNING APPLICATION BRAWING 23.03.21 registered affice: bishopstone 36 crescent raad warthing west sussex BRI 1RL
M RPBEIG6 /£ TOM KALEL FPON TIE DEAMING| DIEPT B MHE LASE B MMAE WPLILATINS -TIE ONTRACTIR SHALI CHCE ALL DPBSING 0USTE - IT 5 THE GRTIMITIRS MESMINSELITY TO RSV TRAT AL WIS ARELANAL 4 I DHMUNE VTH THE BILIIW PEQUATIORS - DEAMIN IFQMTIN IS SUBECT 1.3 DETALEN SOATY IF STE & IERVBEMENTS IF LIKILL JUTHINTY MARMIE IUILUMS PEQUATI © HE PAYY DEPARTHENTS -ALL G5 FGRMA] DN MEPRORNED UIDER LIERSE

mmmwmmmumxm mmwmwummummmmnmwwmuumﬂm COMETENT ML ESISIET ¢ PRIKILE (ORTICTOR - EFER 0 THE MROLECT AN RESHTED A WNARE ITES Fah LSt LINCE N RETTICATIN o HLISAM. o £ IFDAT SURTY LIOANS - THE (LETT ¢ (o1 AR ME ALVDED 10 BAURE THAT A MSHOSED) WOl S MECURM§ LT
LIRS D PRI WALLEC

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




EXISTING SCHEMATIC ELEVATIONS - SHEET 1 NOTES
DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION

PURPOSES ONLY
PLAG BASED ON HE SURVEYS DRAWG 1513- 01 AND 02 DATED (6022020

FLOJR AREAS WHERE NGTED) ARE GROSS INTERKAL AN(I APPRUXNATE ONLY

b
stale

front elevation facing south
creseent designs

architecture worthing

et 0845 008 2223

S WEL M CPESCENt - CeSIgNS.COUK

client  BR7 LIMITI date  FEB 2021 scale 1100 @ A3 erescent designg Isu_s:ex) Itd - registered in england na: 2229957

project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no I?OIL PL20S zratu: PLANNING APPLICATION BRAWING 95.03.2| registered affice: bishopstone 36 crescent road worthing west sussex BN 1RL
PR THECAAN 651 I TIECASE 0 LI APALIATERS -THE oK THE TIATRSEORMIT! T CAE L ALWIEYS (2 LURLL MCHLARE Y ML FEGLITRAS SO ERGTES R X LCTULE Rt b ESURDENTSBELK AL FLINGS HLIISGAITRA CHER VI L SMOMTIEROX DU UmiE
s ) ATHK MG T AL DOTSIESTED e LT SDULLIID T 1 TTBMEE L mmlnnmmﬁmumamu TEANCTGR - IETED A HE MRUECT LLIAD REGATER A4k Al TES Fe2 LASTLKER AETTF CATIR IF URIAL O SSIFLINT SAETY LA - N LIGH ¢ (TLITIRE AZNTED TI BALBE HAT MY A0 Wil

LRZE HEPUTY WAL CTUXK) AN UITEMEL MTL UPREIRAATE PIATY WAL ARG SHAE LS| FAKLCE - I Il LAY IEIH PSYCED K8 PLUMS ALIATIEN APES

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




EXISTING ELEVATIONS - SHEET 2 NOTES

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY

PLANS RASEL) O H SURVEYS LRANING 151-01 AN 02 DATED 0642202

FLOOR AREAS WHERE ROTED ARE GROSS INTERNAL AND APPROIHATE ALY

1liginigin

S meters

front elevation facing west

[L11 L1 LT I LI

rear elevation facing west

crescent designs

architecture worthing
et 0845 008 2223

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE Sl 2 WEL M CrESCent - CeSIgnS.COUK
client  BR7 LIMITI date  FEB 2021 scale 1900 '?M crescent designs |sussex) LHd - registered in england no: 2229957
project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19014-PL206 status PLANNING APPLICATION BRAWING 95.03.21 registered atfice: bishopstone 3b crescent raad worthing west sussex BN 1RL

TOBIAE TIAT UL
TR AT ICWA R SLLL NFRAT G W05 RALTIA YT PO OCaT LTS - T T
u!lmmwwu:x.'amwmmmmﬂmmmnmmm-mmunm PR PPN CAIRE CF UGE P IFPLCATIN ARPTRES MT

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




EXISTING ELEVATIONS - SHEET 3
NOTES

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION

PURPOSES ONLY

PLANS BASEISON HB SURYE'YS LRAWNG 1513-01 AND 07 DATED 06422020

FLODR AREAS WHERE NOTED ARE INTERNAL AND APPROJIMATE QALY

pmm = = OO

l 1 H 3 4 § mefers nosurvey nfeenatian far schoal grounds - Ivvels astinahed

S?EE

rear elevation facing north

]
Il

LE%—Z&JZ_CLE ro wrigyinfomation for sthosl grande - lerels estimated

st

rear elevation facing east
i crescent aesians

architecture worthing

Lete: 0845 O0e 2223
S = WE. M CrESCent - desSIonS.COUK

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE - : 5

client  BR7 LIMITED date FEB 2021 scale 1100 RA3 crescent designg [sussex) Ltd - registered in england na: 2229957

project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19014-PL207 status PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING 95.03.21 registered atfice: bishopstone 3b crescent road warthing west sussex BN 1RL
TR TR S CRTIACTYS RS CECCAL DRI 1T T CRTACTVS Uy TOUGHAL T 1L VI LA WLV T TE AL IROATEAS oMY AT § S BECTALE VT S MEUROENTS 8 LK TG L LI EOLITR BTV EXSTIGTS AL S FTTIM ERRA KIS UDKE

530415 TCAFETEN FOCME CEGER L PMPE [oMIAToR - HIED M HE FOICT LIZWO PGS EX A4l VWO LITES P ASSETRICE R EXTF CATI IF VRELAL O SGIFLT SAFETY LIS - H LUBH £ (INTLKTIR FE (XS 0TI BEBE 1LAT AR FROAED WS DI

APALIATRR -TIE
FERETTED -THE (LET WHEAFE LIMED I THE COMSTPACTIR IEWNH & ALLYGETEN IEEILATIG SILLL WPOMT 45 MACTIMRE A
T AL MOEPEI SHYE BEE1 FWALTED - THS IR/ LIS IEBIMEMIED K MID: AP CLWWE IF LSCMAMAE A/PLCATIN PIRASES LY

(PIVWE BT
u:lu:nmmmmm lﬂmllll

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




/Pﬁoposeo GROUND FLOOR PLAN e TES
\WING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION

—T - AR POSES ONLY
OFF «

NBcaferequimthhrespec(oh\J)‘kmbomﬂsrya\d
P ion of X L i

S

12 BKE STORE

ELECSUB STATION

RETARIHG WALL SKD WATERPRAORKE

SLIUING GATES

P T
|
= 1
J
]
1
1
ﬁ |
&
g
=
g
=
=
:
E

{——==="F
REV B 30.08.11 - BKE SNELTER REVISED

Iﬁ_l REV A 162621 - BINS JKES AN FRONTAGE REVISED

WALL AND PALINGS

“l_ Z 9 r:h@f enjure

o ——— — - —— — RETAHNG WALL MTHRALNGS | | Letet 0845 008 2223
T h——"— iT‘Ebsi‘ELé“‘"‘“ ST 2 WE. DB CrESOeNt - CESINS.COWK

client  BR7 LIMITED date  JAN 2001 scale 110 crescent designs |sussex) Ltd - registered in england na; 2229957
project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19914 -P| srafus PLANNING APPLICA VISED 30.08.21 registered affice; bishopstone 36 crescent read worthing west sussex BN 1RL

w TEDEE TUT AL F L

woriﬂing

WAL O AT NEWY e Y

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PF9P68ED FIRST FLOOR PLAN e e

DHAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY

HE SITE
PROPUSED PLANS SRE BASED ChHE SRWEYS DRAWING 5101 AND 12 04TED Qkte2t2t

IRE SAFETY
STFLOCR FLATS ARE LESS THAN ¢ Sn ABIVE GRUVHL) LEVEL SERVED BY A PRWATE STAR - PROPOSALS
SUBECT TOFRE ENGREERING REVEW, GAINNG BULOING REGULATION APPRUVAL AND CORPLIARCE WITH
HOUSHS ACT 210C INCLUDIG THE RETALATION OF APPROPRITE ESEAPE WINXNWS [ESCW), RRE ALARMS
WBLE THE SCHEME AND SPEN PLAK FLAT

HEDULE FIRST FLOOR

(X CBF DNEBEDRDOH FLAT S0 S [EXTLUDMNG ST

- AMENITY

BKE STORE
SEDUH R%F

T ‘ﬁ_l

WALL AND RALDGS

| | archifetfure woriﬁing
NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE T R O IO, 1 ooy
stale

client  BR7 LIMITED date  JAN 2001 scale 110 crescent designs |sussex) Ltd - registered in england na; 2229957
project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19914 -P| srafus ING APPLICA Y ISED 30.06.21 registered affice; bishopstone 36 crescent read worthing west sussex BN 1RL

TE w TEDEIE TIAT AL O AELLUFL 3 I DHMUMER! F AL

WAL O AT NEWY e Y

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PRPP@SED ROOFPLAN o NDTES

DHRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY
PLANS BASED o H SLRVEYS LRAWING TB-01MD 2 [ TED QkE2242

VENTILATING ROOFLIGHTS . .

’ o I SCHXCL BULDNG
wenry ||l ]\

BIKESTORE
SEOIN AOOF

ALUATENT REAR ALCESS 1- 5 ORF ALK STREET

ABJACENT ELEC SUB STATIOR

REV B 34611 - BIKE SHELTER REVISELI AND REPESTION

(Y] FEW 4 %0621 - BIHS GINES AND FRONTAGE FEVISED
WALL AND RALMS e O

I archifetfure wori?ing
NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SITE L1 2 3 & 5ot mlgwgr%%rizs%%nc—mlons.com
stale

client  BR? LIMTED date  JAN 2001 scale 110 crescent designs lsussex) Ltd - registered in england na; 2229957
project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19014-P SraTus ING APPLICA VISED 30.06.21 registered atfice; bishopstone 36 crescent raad worthing west sussex BH11 1RL

L 3§ DVMEW F: AL

T Co

WAL ETCAT MWK Gy

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




ROPOSED BUILDING AND SITE SECTIONS - SHEET 1

proprietary generic timber
clad bike store with
sedum roof

approx rear of

NOTES

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY

PLADS BASED ON HE SURVEYS DRAWNG 1512-01 AND 02 DATED (6022020

FIAL LEVELS ARE SKBECT T0 DETALED TECHHKAL DESIGN

KB - N SKRVEY IKFGRNATION

approx outline of existing buidings removed
AVAILABLE FOR SCHOXL STE

Cobden Road Properties

Service Road

M Scheol
Site and

existing
retaining

|
|
| wal
|
|

site section through courtyard facing east

bins on frontage

proposed retaining wall
with ralings above

JEoL

approx level of existing site

KB - N6 SRVEY KFGRNATION

approx outline of existing buiding AVAILABLE FOR SCHXL SITE

on part front boundary
bins adjacent

UNIT 2 0BF ORE RmFlAT

School
Site and

approximation

VHIT1 0BF E BEDFLAT

of existing

retaining

site section through units looking east Crafi

REV B 319621 - BIRE SHELTER REYISEL) AND FEPOSTIONEL)
REV 210,621 - RINS BKES PND FRONTAGE REVISED

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES SlTE

client  BR? LIMITEf date

project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 190“ PLBO REY B
DN [0 LT A ICOHAKIIE 1 TE S L LIBE (LTSS T RIS OECL OIS (TE-TE T AT

FEPOESMUTY TO|
SUMIETOATAR] APV AL WA ETIED T ERT\RRUNCKIE 1 LIRS LU0 M, AL 4B L AT 3 S PR WY
HTL APRORIATE PIRTY WAL MREETEAS HAVE LS FRLTE: - THB IR LY IEEM POSWIED K PLLNMS ‘SLEATIN PUIPOAER

scale £100 ’?M

shatus PLANNING APPLICATION BRAWING REYISED 30.06.21
CORICTER - IEFEN 0 THE RLECT LD
unnl(umwmmmm

mwumtﬁmummxmum DRANIGIF IP4.TRE B RINECT X0 K OETALEY RPEY FEITES ERAROENTE BFLIAL THITY PLIDGS HILIRG MEGAATRA L HETA!
B REGAIER Ak IV ITES P2 LSSSTLKE R REXTF CATIR IF UBASUALL O SSSIFLANT SARETY LKA - IHE (LIBH  CINTLICTIR W5 ATED TH BEIDE AT MY

crescent designs

architecture woerthing

bete 0845 Coa 2223

Sl 2 WE. M CrESCent - CeSIgS.COUK

crescent designg [sussex) L - registered in england na; 2229957

registered office: bishopstone 36 crescent road workhing west sussex BN11 1RL

IEPRTHENTS AL QS MY TR FETRORK B URED UELEE
PO WO HEADSE KTO

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL



PROPOSED BUILDING AND SITE SECTIONS - SHEET 2 NOTES
DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
PURPOSES ONLY

apprax outiine of existing building FLAMS BASED OH HE SURVEYS ORAWNG 1519-01 AND 02 DATED t 22020
FMAL LEVELS ARE SUBECT T0 DETALED TECHKAL DESIGH

progrietary generic timber clad
bike store with sedum roof

T
|
|
|

LNTZ-DBF%FBQHR“ UNIT 6 - OBF Qne Bed Fiz

|
ks

) raised lavel of raised level of
adjacent rear access adjacent elec substation enclosure

for 1-5 Norfolk Street
UNT 1- OBF Orfe Bed Flat UNIT S - 0BF dne Bed iy r
H

1B - 16 SARVEY NFCRAATION
AVALABLE FoR SCHXL SITE

school site zone between site
and school building level not known

— approx outline of existing building

lower level of
adjacent rear access
for 1-5 Norfolk Streat

ALUACENT SCHODL BULIAES

e 7 VB 340521 - BKE SHELTER AEVSED N0 REPUSTRRED
appeax Jovel of exizting s¥a FEV A 21 - BES AHD TG REVRED

crescent O@Slg

architecture woerthing

LEtS 0845 O0a 2223
NORFOLK STREET GARAGES S|TE S WE. D CrESCent - desSIonS.COUK
client  BRY LIMITEI scule 100 E A3 crescent degigns [sussex) Lhd - registered in england na: 2229957
project NORFOLK STREET GARAGES drg no 19011. PLB1 REVB shatus PLANNING APPLICATION BRAWING REYISED 30.06.21 registered affice: bishopstone 36 crescent raad workthing west sussex BN 1RL

YO DPD I (2% [0 BE SAEN FFOM THE DA I LDIEPY I TIE CASE OFFLLIRM APPLEATINS -THE CITEALTE RAALE G AL DHERSIIS O TE - IT 5 THE GTLALTIS| mnmwumwmllmmwmlm DFAMIGIF IRNTRE § RINECT ) K OETALEY RPEP EFEITE ESARONTE B LIKAL MTHIITY PLIDGS HILENG PEGAATRA L HERAYY IEPARTHENS AL QS MY TN FETRORK B URE) LYELEE
MMM SUICY K REANCHPERARS JLL ARSI W R R LN 1 (A ISTTIDRESON MSVAPRT [ ATE SHLLATPRY 45 S CPRATLNE K MFELON MEPIERRSMER COMDSCTGR - IEFE 13 THE PRLECT LAPD EGATER A4k IV ITESF#2 LESTLIE W METF CATIR IF URSUL O SYSIFLANT SAFETY LIZAOA - HE (LIG ¢ CINTLICTIR ME ADVTED TH DIUBE HAT AV PO WS DEUDAE AT
LREY HEPUITY WAL CTEXKY ARENS MTTEMTD HTL AZPRORIATE PARTY Wil WSS HAYE LEE | FAMTES - THE Wl L0 IEEN PSSR R PLANMS,

site section through stairs looking north folla

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - Sheet 1

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds te m:vg g‘;{:sm;d":; '::‘a:ﬂozcv‘e slore glo?teﬁ als

WALLS Ydmlmmml&mmkmm
in blocks of colour with dark grey feature brick de

refuse bins on Jr.f5 o i = = :
- - o . - e WINDOWS Grey Aluminium faced timber composite

e - — —— o IRAINWATER GOODS ~ Natural Zinc

/—0refusebilsonfrornage

adjacent electric sub-station compound
caution with respect of works on boundary
buried services and protection of equipment

adjacent school grounds see
site sections (estimated)

UNIT 3 - TBF UNIT 4 - TBF

—

SOUTH ELEVATION / SECTION FROM WITHIN SITE O P 6 S O 6 n C O 6 S I Q n S
10

architecture | worthing

| Reve 200721 MATENALS NOTE LPOATED - N 28 LPOATED CoNE: G846 DDS 2223

100 - SCALE meters
NORFOLK STREET GARAGES = WORTHING i i o s i EMAIl : We. R Orasoent-designs.oo.ux

client BR7 LIMITED date:  JAN 2021 scale: 1:100 @ A3 ! ® crescent designs (sussex)lcl | regstered in england no : 2229957

project: NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drg no: 19014-PL240 REVC  status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING REVISED 20.07.21 registered ofice - bishopslone, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL
10 DMENEICHS ARE TOBE GOALED FRCU THE CAMMSG EXCEPT 34 THE CALE OF PLANNIG APPLCKTIONS) . THE CONTRACTOR SHOLLD CHECK AL OREMBONS OW 1T [T15 THE CONTRACTORS RESEOMGIBTY 10 ENGURE TUAT AL WORKS ARE LANFLE & 1N COMPANCE WETH TV B85 REGLLATIONS - CSAMMG SSFCRUATION 5 SUBLECT 70 A SETALED SUEY OF THE G AND B RECUSMENTS OF THE LOCAL
IR PLavbeN, B Do CONTRCL A HaAT AR o N LR P CACHAMLS BLIRVEY DATA® SN OP YRS AL TS PRSIV T ST AN REOUIPED DY S CERTRL TSN DI AN MCEEVENS RECLLATINR B APPONE s SN A 15 PRACTICADLE A COMPETENT PRRCIPLE CCAHER | PEBMSPLE CONTRACTOR REFER O D
RS Y A AT 2 TR M CAWAEIS NETES PO AGHSTANCE N CENTIICAON O LMLSLIAL OR SENEICANT SAPETY WA - D CLRNT AN CONMCTCR ARE ACWEES 70 XS THAT A PRCSOSED WORKS FECLIRMG ACTON UNSER T PARTY WALL £ ACT AR N MESMENTED LA, APPRGPRUTE PARTY WAL AGREEMESTS WY SEEN FALEED TS CRANPE 1 TEEN PREPARLD PR

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - Sheet 2

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds

— feature brick detailing

indication of school grounds
with retaining wall and ramp
to lower level play area

indication of general
lower level of school
grounds (estimated)

WEST ELEVATION (VIEW FROM 1-5 NORFOLK STREET R o e b e e

retaining wall on front
boundary with raiings above

UNIT 4 - TBF

WEST ELEVATION / SECTION FROM WITHIN SITE O P 6 S O 6 r] C Cj 6 S | g n S

3 23 s - :
architecture | worthing
[k : 0846 008 2223

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES - WORTHING  ["aia e | 63 £ S, DR SSOSNE-ISIGNS. 00K
® crescent designs (sussex) id | regisiered In england no @ 2229957

BR7 LIMITED date:  JAN 2021 scale: 1:100 @ A3
registered office - bishopsione, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL

pmjetx NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drgno: 10014-PL241 REVA  status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING REVISED 30.06.21
MO DMENZICNS AR TOBE SOALED FRCM THS CRNNING N THE CASE OF PUNNING APPLCATIONS) - THE CONTRACTOR SHCLLD CHECK ALL DMEMSIONS O ST - T 15 TIE CONTRACTORS RESPOMIBITY 10 ENGLRE THAT ALL WORKS ARE LUWFLE & N COMPLANCE WETH THE BLECING REGLLATIONS - DRAMMNG NFCRATION & SUBLECT 70 A CETALED SURVEY OF THE SITE AND T RECUISAENTS OF THE LOCAL.
ATGRITY PLANENG, B8 CING CONTRGL AND HIGHAAY | - AL O IFORMATION 1 (DUOER LCENSE PO GROWMICE SURVEY DATA @ RO COPYRIHT ALL RGhTS RESEFVED TV LT W REDURED BY E CONTILICTION CESIG AV MASMGERNT RECULATIONS Eh, APPOINY A2 SOCN A8 1 PRACTICARLE A COUPE (T FRBVCLE CESGIER & PRACPLE CONTIMCTOR. AETER T0 B
CEDZAERS SEX ALGEEAENT SEISTER AND CAANENG NOTES FOR ABSTANGE N IGDNTIICATON OF LMLELIAL OR 20 AT CURNT AND CORTRACTOR ARE ACVISED 70 ENGLISE THAT AdY PROPOSED WORKS RECLIRING ACTION LNDER THE PARTY WALL £70 ACT ARE NOT LT APPROPRIATE PARTY WALL AGREEMENTS WAVE BEEN FNALIZED - - THE CRAWING MAG TN PREPARED FOR

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - Sheet 3

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds

}— feature brick detailing
fo comers

—————* APPROX HIGHER LEVEL OF SCHOOL GR

NORTH ELEVATION (VIEWED FROM SCHOOL) \— APPROX GENERAL LEVEL OF SCHOOL GROUNDS TO NORTH (estimated)

APPROX LEVEL OF SCHOOLS FENCE ON TOP OF RETAINING WALL (estimated)

proprietary generic timber
clad bicydle store
with sedum roof e————

UNIT 4 - TBF

NORTH ELEVATION / SECTION FROM WITHIN SITE O I"\ 6 8 O 6 n C Cj 6 S | g n S

10
architecture | worthing

o 1 2 3 4
100 - SCALE meters
NORFOLK STREET GARAGES - WORTHING | st o s resm| ST W10 OrEBOBNL-ABIGNS.0OK
BR7 LIMITED date:  JAN 2021 scale 1:100 @A3 | ] ecymntoesqs(wssexm |mgstmunmg‘amm 2229057
registered office - bishopsione, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL

client
project: NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drgno: 10014-PL242REVB  status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING REVISED 30.06.21
0 ENGLRE THAT ALL WORKS ASE: LAIFLS & IN COMPLANCE WETHTHE DLELOIG REGLLATIONS - DRAMNG

"THE CONSTRUCTION CESHGM AND MAMAGEMENT REGULA

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - Sheet 4

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds vertical detail bric F——

— feature brick detailing to corners

indication of school grounds and existing
retaining wall to lower level play
area (estimated)

indication of lower general level
of school grounds (estimated)

EAST ELEVATION

bins on frontage

1
i
i
T
i

h
i
i
H
|
EERR A

retaining wall on front indication of school grounds and existing

boundary with retaining wall to lower level play

railings above area

service

indication of lower general level
UNIT 3 - TBF g of school grounds

EAST ELEVATION / SECTION FROM WITHIN SITE O P 6 S O 6 n [; Cj 6 S | @ n S
10

architecture | worthing

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES - WORTHING ~ [=esres e

client BR7 LIMITED date:  JAN 2021 scale: 1:100 @ A3 @ crescent designs (sussex) #d | regstered In england no : 2229957
project: NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drgno: 19014-PL243 REVA  status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING REVISED 16.06.21 registered office - bishopetone, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex. BN11 1RL
15 DMENEIRS AR TO BE SCALED FRCM TS DM

0 1 2 3 4

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




INDICATIVE STREET SCENE / SITE SECTIONS - context informaion estimated.

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds

REAR OF COBDEN ROAD
HOUSES TO SOUTH

AND BUILDINGS TO NORTH (estimated)

INDICATIVE SECTION THROUGH SITE NORTH TO SOUTH VIEWED FROM WEST

INDICATIVE SECTION THROUGH SERVICE ROAD WEST TO EAST VIEWED FROM SOUTH

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES WORTHING

client BR7 LIMITED JUL 2021 scale: 1:200@ A3

project: NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drg no: 19014-PL250 status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING 20.07.21

34 THE CALE OF PLANIG APPLCATIONS) - THE CONTRACTOR SHOLLD CHECK AL CMENIONE Eioamr
umu-mmmmmmuuom RGHTS RESERVED - THE
LN D oREPACTER ARE ADWEED 73 ENELEE THAT A PRCPOSE WO SECAIANG ACHIOH LADER I PARTY WALL £7C ACT AR N

TS IgNs

architecture | worthing
[8K: 0846 DOS 2223
EMAll : WS.M B ONeS0ent-desIgnS.00.ux

® crescent designs. (sussa()ld | rewlereuherqlmd no: 2229957

registered ofice - bishopsione, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL

REGLLATIONS - DRMMMG SFORMATION © SUBLECT 20 A CETALED SUVEY OF TV ST AND D RECUSNENTS OF TIE LOCAL
mmmumulnﬂ:“ SO TENT PRACIPLE CCMGHER & PRMOIE
WELEMENTED LT APPROPRATE -

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




INDICATIVE APPROACH VIEWS - context information estimated.

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds

INDICATIVE APPROACH VIEW FROM WEST INDICATIVE APPROACH VIEW FROM EAST

cPrescent. designs

architecture | worthing
[k : 084E 008 2223

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES - WORTHING Sl 1. B OreS0BNG- ISSIONS.00.UK

BR7 LIMITED date:  JUL 2021 scale: NTS @A3 ® crescent designs (sussex) iid [ registered in england no @ 2229957
Woﬁﬁl NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drg no: 18014-PL251 status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING 29.07.21 registered ofice - bishopsione, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL
N DMENEICNS AR TOBE SCALED FROM THS CRNNG. 34 THE CALE OF PLANNIG APPUCATIONS) - THE COMTRACTOR SHOLLD CHECK ALL DMEMBIONS ON SITE - 715 THE CONTRACTORS RESEOMGIBAITY 10 ENGLIRE THAT ALL WORKS ARE LAWFLS & I COMPLANCE WeTH THE BUEDING REGLLATIONS - DRAWING NFORMATION & SUBECT 70 A OETALED GURVEY CF THE GITE AND TAE RECLIRMENTS OF THE LOCAL
CTICRITY PLANNMNG, BLA DG CONTRCL AV 1O RAY “AL08 AFCRMAEON AR UCE0EE T RTINS ST OATA & CAOMM GO0 T AL o i PESEIVED 1 L T N NOUPED 5 18 CCh TR T CC A AR PUGLLATIN oL AP NT Ad Lo A 3 PRACTICADLE 4 COUGE T TRBCAL CCAGER | PasuoiL CNTAACTOR, ITER T0 B
RS o AL AT SE4STCR MO CAASNG KOTES FOR ABSATANCE N GENTIICA™ON OF LMZIAL O AT ‘CLENT ANDCONTACTOR AR ADVSED 70 ENELIRE THAT AdY PROPOSED WORKS RECLIRNG ACTION LADER THE PARTY WALL E7C ACT ARE NOT WPLEMENTED LNTE. APPRCPRIATE PARTY WALL AGREEMENTS WAV SEEN FNALIEED - - THE DRATNG HAG IEEN PREPHALD FOR

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




IN DICATIVE AERIAL VI EW - context information estimated.

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds

INDICATIVE AERIAL VIEW FROM SOUTH EAST

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES - WORTHING

BR7 LIMITED date:  JUL 2021 scale: NTS @ A3
pmjetx NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drg no: 10014-PL252 status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING 29.07.21
G Ee s R oA
CEMAERS R AL SEMEAT S AETCR M CPMREDS NOTES PO A ANCE M ICENTIACATON
FUANNNG APPUCATION PLRPOSES OMLY

cPrescenl. desigNs

architecture | worthing
Lok o846 008 2223
ENAll : We.N R onesoent-designs.00.uxk
® crescent designs (sussex)la ] regietea In england no : 2229957
registered ofice - bishopstone, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL
DRMMIG SECmMTON & SUBLECT 0 A SETALED SUNEY OF T STE A € RECURMENT, OF € LOCAL
PRACTIANLE A SO, PRACPLL CAHn § PR

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




INDICATIVE OF THE SOUTH STREET ELEVATION - SCALE 1:50 -sstctiswssicsivan

DRANG PRLPARED FORPLANHNG NPLICATION PURPCECC LY
sy mmmalon rel avelebl o adpeam schod grends

EL T FTRRAAS e (LRI i PLANNG AFAUCATION CRUANS 02

D A YoM G 37 A7 A8 T Y013 AL MBS O UE =3 C08 VS OEET /O 41 A YW LY LA 150 MW 9. J WOV .3 DA 0 Y7 FLAE B A0S 3 Lk LACTAMMA L3083 404 VA AP LS 36 4 D ATA AT MU 370 AL A SR 36 167 6 L 80 00T a4 L 741 A TS PR T R PR 75 314 TR BT RA
T S W S0 A0 AR G L WA O P AP eI U Lh A € D L D PR W LS o DN R, T AL I P O

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




INDICATIVE MATERIALS

DRAWING PREPARED FOR PLANNING APPLICATION PURPOSES ONLY
survey information not available for adjacent school grounds

WIRECUT DARK GREY SMOOTH
DETAIL BRICK

INDICATION OF TYPICAL ALUMINIUM TIMBER COMPOSITE WINDOWS AND
PANELS BUT WITH PROPOSED COLOUR - RAL 7012 BASALT GREY

CONTEMPORARY OAK
FRONT DOORS AL 7012 Basaligrau
WITH GLAZED PANEL -

SANDFACED GREY MULTICOLOURED STOCK

orescent designNs

architecture | worthing
CON: G846 DS 2223

NORFOLK STREET GARAGES - WORTHING £l ¢ We.r B OreSoBNG-SIoNs.c0.Uk
® cresoenlosslgws(s«.lssex]ld ] rexpianaﬂhmglmd no: 2229957

BR7 LIMITED date:  JUL 2021 scale: NTS @ A3
NORFOLK STREET GARAGES  drg no: 19014-PL253 status: PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING 29.07.21 registered office - bishopsione, 36, crescent road, worthing, west, sussex, BN11 1RL
ane cp ormmene SIS AT AL WORS ATE LIMPLL LN COMELANCE WETHTHE LRSS REGULATOS - COAMMG SFORIMTION € SUBLECT %0 A CETALED SUNVEY OF TV GTE AND D RECLSMENTS 0 I LOCAL
AT MAZEAEN PRACTICADLE A COUPETENT PRINCIPLE CCGHER § PRIMGPLE CONTRACTOR - REFER TO D
En LINTE, APPROPATE PARTY WALL AGREEMENTS WAV SEEN FNALISED - - THE CRAWIG 4G TEEN PREPAAED FOR

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




i .J.c.GMvC@ﬂi&Wi‘ “_ﬁﬁ.@.ﬂ
SeRnpenielr;

O LN W -

WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




-

N

@ WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




WORTHING BOROUGH

COUNCIL




”Ki‘_m

COUNCIL

WORTHING BOROUGH




	Agenda
	6 Planning Applications
	Item 6.1 Buckingham Road Car Park.pptx
	Item 6.2 Windsor Road .pptx
	Item 6.3 Ivy Arch Road.pptx
	Item 6.4 Garage Site.pptx


